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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALY

| am pleased to present to our shareholders, the annual report of China Mining Resources Group Limited (the
“Company”) together with its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2012.

RESULTS

For the financial year ended 31 December 2012, the Group recorded a revenue of HK$221,646,000 (2011:
HK$241,649,000) and gross profit of HK$95,023,000 (2011: HK$105,459,000) from continuing operations,
representing a decrease of 8% and 10% respectively as compared with last year. The decrease in revenue was
mainly due to the combined effect of a significant decrease of revenue generated from Harbin Songjiang Copper
(Group) Company Limited (“Harbin Songjiang”) and its subsidiaries (together with Harbin Songjiang, “Harbin
Songjiang Group”) and a moderate increase of revenue generated from King Gold Investment Limited (“King
Gold”) and its subsidiaries (together with King Gold, “King Gold Group”).

The Group’s loss attributable to owners of the Company amounted to HK$110,858,000 (2011: profit of
HK$82,109,000). In particular, the significant increase in loss was mainly attributable to: 1) The impairment
losses of HK$57,913,000 on available-for-sale investments (HK$57,913,000 attributable to equity owners),
impairment losses on property, plant and equipment of HK$16,832,000 (HK$13,466,000 attributable to equity
owners), impairment losses on inventories of HK$13,018,000 (HK$9,799,000 attributable to equity owners), and
impairment losses on other intangible assets of HK$7,874,000 (HK$5,512,000 attributable to equity owners);
and 2) significant decrease in other gains during the year ended 31 December 2012 compared to an one off
other gains transaction in respect of a disposal of a number of subsidiaries of the Company in the amount of
HK$146,780,000 in the year ended 31 December 2011 whereas there was no such other gains recorded in the
year ended 31 December 2012.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
Harbin Songjiang Group

Harbin Songjiang is based in Harbin, Heilongjiang Province, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
and specialises in the mining, processing and sale of molybdenum. Harbin Songjiang Group contributed
HK$50,761,000 (2011: HK$94,004,000) and HK$6,362,000 (2011: HK$45,897,000) to the Group’s revenue and
profit respectively for the year ended 31 December 2012. Revenue in respect of the mining business for the
year ended 31 December 2012 has decreased by 46% to HK$50,761,000 in the year 2012 from HK$94,004,000
in the year 2011. The decrease was mainly attributable to the decrease of sales volume of ferro molybdenum
from 605 tonnes in the year 2011 to 385 tonnes in the year 2012 and the decrease in the selling prices of ferro
molybdenum under the influence of the international market price. Considering the current relative lower market
price of ferro molybdenum, the management of Harbin Songjiang Group strategically minimised its selling efforts
until the market price recovers. The average selling price of ferro molybdenum fell to around HK$131,847 per
tonne during the year ended 31 December 2012 (2011: HK$155,379 per tonne). The cost of sales of Harbin
Songjiang Group decreased from HK$72,019,000 in 2011 to HK$40,445,000 in the year 2012. The average gross
profit margin was 20% in the year 2012 (2011: 23%). The decrease in gross profit margin was mainly due to the
higher unit production cost of ferro molybdenum due to the increase in labour cost in Mainland China during the
year and the decrease in the selling prices of ferro molybdenum.

King Gold Group

King Gold Group is principally engaged in cultivation, research, production and sale of Chinese tea products,
and its products selling under the brand names of “E%E” and “EH3E2Z"” which are well-recognised in the
PRC as premium tea products and widely distributed throughout the country. King Gold Group contributed
HK$170,870,000 (2011: HK$147,645,000) and HK$13,733,000 (2011: profit of HK$16,369,000) to the Group’s
revenue and loss for the year ended 31 December 2012 respectively. For the financial year ended 31 December
2012, King Gold Group generated a revenue of HK$170,870,000 (2011: HK$147,645,000). This represented an
increase of 16% in revenue when compared with last year. The increase in revenue was mainly attributable to
the expansion of the distribution network within the market in the PRC during the year 2012. The cost of sales of
King Gold Group for the year was HK$86,177,000 (2011: HK$64,170,000). The increasing competition in the tea
product market, coupled with rising labour costs and raw material costs (raw material being the tea leaves), led
to a further shrinking profit margin in our tea business. The average gross profit margin was 50%, representing a
decrease of 7% as compared with an average gross profit margin of 57% last year.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND AN ___S'lﬁki-"‘w
A

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (conTiNUED)
Year Joy Group

Year Joy Investments Limited (“Year Joy”) indirectly owns 100% of the economic benefit from the operation of the
iTV business of China iTV Network Co., Ltd. (“China iTV”), a company established in the PRC on 7 September
1998 with limited liability, through an exclusive business operation agreement. China iTV is mainly engaged in
providing online video service which involves an online video platform that offers various contents and delivers
various value-added services to the customers of telecommunication operators in the PRC. For the financial year
ended 31 December 2012, iTV business started generating revenue. It is expected that the revenue from iTV
business will increase in the foreseeable future. Year Joy and its subsidiaries (“Year Joy Group”) contributed
HK$15,000 and HK$13,836,000 (2011: profit of HK$42,543,000) to the Group’s revenue and loss for the year
ended 31 December 2012.

Investments in Canada listed mining companies and other securities

The Group invested in several Canada listed mining companies which were held for the purpose of long-term
investments and capital gain and dividend income during the year ended 31 December 2012. The investment
portfolio of the Group, including available-for-sale investments, recorded a depreciation during the year ended 31
December 2012. The net decrease in fair value of the investment portfolio during the year was HK$97,732,000
(2011: HK$182,393,000 including decrease in fair value and net losses on disposal).

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had total assets and net assets amounted to HK$997,022,000 (2011:
HK$1,135,415,000) and HK$327,631,000 (2011: HK$478,867,000), respectively. The current ratio was 1.12, as
compared to 1.38 as of last year end.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had bank balances and cash, of HK$117,073,000 (2011: HK$152,829,000),
and most of which were denominated in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had: (i) bank borrowings of HK$67,496,000 (2011: HK$32,956,000)
which were dominated in Renminbi and interest-bearing at floating rates with reference to the prevailing
borrowing rate quoted by the People’s Bank of China and (ii) other loans of HK$6,492,000 (2011: HK$6,459,000),
which were dominated in Renminbi, of which HK$1,227,000 was interest free and HK$5,265,000 was interest-
bearing at 2.55% per annum. The gearing ratio, as a ratio of total borrowings to shareholders’ fund was 53.0%
(2011: 13.9%).

As at 31 December 2012, the Group has pledged a building and a prepaid lease payment with carrying values of
approximately HK$18,639,000 (2011: HK$2,818,000) and HK$19,711,000 (2011: HK$20,117,000) respectively to
secure general banking facilities grant to the Group.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK MANAGEMENT

As part of the Group’s assets and liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong Dollar and Canadian Dollar in order
to minimise the foreign currency risk, the Group aims to utilise the fund for transactions that are denominated in
the same currency.

SHARE CAPITAL
As at 31 December 2012, the Company had 9,138,782,211 ordinary shares and 3,776,190,000 non-redeemable

convertible preference shares in issue with total shareholders’ fund of the Group amounting to approximately
HK$1,291,497,000.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND A

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES AND
ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

There were no material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2012.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2012, the Group had no contingent liability (2011: Nil).

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 8 November 2011, the Company has received a writ
of summons issued by the High Court of HKSAR on 8 November 2011 (the “Writ”) pursuant to which Mr. Lin Min
and Fujian Yuansheng Foods Industry Co. Ltd. (“Fujian Yuansheng”) (named as the plaintiffs in the writ) alleged
that, amongst other things, the Company and 27 other co-defendants and/or certain PRC government officials
had acted in conspiracy in obtaining ownership and control of certain assets of the plaintiffs and they were
claiming for, amongst other things, damages from all 28 defendants jointly and severally in the total amount of
RMB1,589,000,000.

As announced by the Company on 8 November 2011 and 26 March 2010, the Company has not obtained any
interests in Fujian Yuanshen and is seeking legal advice in response to the Writ, in the opinion of the directors,
the possible of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefit is remote.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had approximately 12 and 938 employees in Hong Kong and Mainland
China respectively.

The staff cost of the Group (including directors’ remuneration in form of salary and other benefits, share-based
payments, performance related incentive payments and retirement benefit contributions) was approximately
HK$45,803,000 for the year ended 31 December 2012 (2011: HK$50,948,000). There was no share-based
payment for the year ended 31 December 2012 (2011: HK$29,768,000).

Directors’ remuneration were fixed with reference to their duties and responsibilities with the Company as well as
the Company’s remuneration policy.

Employees are remunerated at a competitive level and are rewarded according to their performance. Our Group’s
remuneration packages include medical scheme, group insurance, mandatory provident fund for Hong Kong
employees, social insurance packages for Mainland China employees, performance bonus and share option
scheme.

According to the share option scheme adopted by the Company on 26 June 2002 and 25 May 2012, share

options may be granted to directors, employees and other eligible participants of the Group to subscribe for
shares in the Company in accordance with the terms and conditions stipulated therein.

ANNUAL REPORT 2012 CHINA MINING RESOURCES GROUP LIMITED

5



6

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND A

PROSPECTS

The domestic and international ferro molybdenum markets in 2012 continued to grow slowly and the price of ferro
molybdenum has remained at a relatively low level in recent years. Despite the challenging economic conditions,
the Group has maintained a stable mining production for the year 2012 thereby positioning itself to grasp the
opportunities that will come with the recovery of the market. In the meanwhile, the Group has strategically slowed
down the sales of ferro molybdenum until the market price recovers sufficiently.

The tea business maintained a stable growth of revenue throughout the year and the Group increased the
number of stores in a city or a region by opening new stores, including self-operated stores and franchise stores,
to maintain regional dominance. Going forward, in order to improve the profitability and market share, the Group
will continue to provide high quality tea products, develop new and exclusive tea products, and expand its market
channels through the establishment of more chain stores.

For the online video business, the Group will continue to focus on the cooperation with the major
telecommunication operators in the PRC and develop more value-added services, including, but not limited to,
online video service, mobile value-added service to the customers of telecommunication operators. Moreover, the
Group plans to purchase additional popular Japanese animations to enhance its content library and to redistribute
to other online video companies. The ultimate goal for the online video business is to have a long-term and stable
cooperative relationship with the PRC major telecommunications operators and to continue to develop relevant
internet and mobile value-added service applications to the end-users of the telecommunications operators.

The future economic outlook is positive both in Mainland China and the US, the two world’s largest economies.
In addition, the commodity market stands to gain from the US QEs and the Japan monetary easing. We are
confident that we can enhance the Group’s economic benefits by strengthening our internal management
process, promoting efficient cost control and improving capital utilization. We will continue with our active
development strategies in 2013 so that the Group will be able to increase its competitiveness as well as gaining
market share in all business segments so as to generate the best return to our shareholders.

APPRECIATION
On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to express my appreciation to the continuous support

of our shareholders and hard work and dedication of all our staff over the past year.

By Order of the Board
China Mining Resources Group Limited

You Xian Sheng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2013
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MAN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
YOU Xian Sheng

Dr. You Xian Sheng (“Dr. You”), aged 58, was appointed as an executive director, chief executive officer and
the deputy chairman of the Company on 31 January 2008. Dr. You was re-designated as the chairman of the
Company on 5 June 2009 and resigned as the chief executive officer of the Company on the same date. Dr. You
is also a director of a subsidiary of the Company.

Dr. You graduated from Chengdu Geological College (FX#B#E 23t )in 1977. Dr. You has also obtained a
master’'s degree in Economics from Nankai University (F3#X%Z%) and a doctorate degree in Industrial Economics
from Fudan University ({8 K2 ). Dr. You has been engaged in geological survey related work for almost 20
years. In 1972, Dr. You joined Geology and Petroleum Team (i 5 fFX) of Fujian Province and has become
brigade leader of 2nd Hydro-geology Brigade (% — /KX K% of Fujian Province and the general manager of
Fujian Geo-engineering Investigation Corporation. In 1992, Dr. You was appointed as deputy commissioner ( &l
H 5 )and commissioner of the administrative office (1TI{/A% ) of Longyan District, Fujian Province, the mayor
of the People’s Government of Longyan City (825 ARBUN ), Fujian Province and was later appointed as the
chairman of Department of Electronic Industry (5F T %E2EE K )and the chairman of Department of Information
Industry (1 B E#B2EE K ) of Fujian Province during the period from February 1998 to November 2000. Prior to
joining the Company, Dr. You was the chairman of the board of directors and the managing director of Fujian
Haihong Science & Technology Development Co., Ltd ({8 ZERIBERBR AR .

CHEN Shou Wu

Mr. Chen Shou Wu (“Mr. Chen”), aged 49, was appointed as an executive director of the Company on 21
December 2007 and was subsequently appointed as the deputy chairman and chief executive officer of the
Company on 5 June 2009. Mr. Chen is also a director of several subsidiaries of the Company. He is the chairman
of Best Tone Holdings Limited, a subsidiary of the Company.

Mr. Chen was appointed as an executive vice president and chief investment officer of the Company on 17
September 2007 and resigned as the executive vice president of the Company on 5 June 2009.

Mr. Chen graduated from Jilin University (F#A2), the PRC with a bachelor's degree in Mineral Resources
Exploration in 1985 and a master’'s degree in Geological Science in 1988. He has also obtained a master’s
degree in Business Administration from Richard Ivey Business School of University of Western Ontario in Canada
in 2003.

Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Chen worked for the Standard Bank as the senior vice president in the mining
and metals division. For the period from 2003 to 2007, Mr. Chen has worked for Kingsway Group, an investment
banking firm, as a senior mining analyst, Golden China Management Inc., a venture capital firm, as a business
development manager, and Golden China Resources Corporation (GCX — Toronto Stock Exchange), a public
company listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange which is engaged in the mining business, as a merchant banking
manager. Mr. Chen has over 10 years of experience in the precious metals sector in the PRC. He was a council
member of China Gold Society (FElZ 2@ )and a research professor in the Shenyang Institute of Geology
and Mineral Resources of the Ministry of Land and Resources (Bl +& 7 #5) of the PRC. Mr. Chen is a director of
Fortune Minerals Limited, a company whose shares are listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANA(

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (conTinuED)
WANG Hui

Mr. Wang Hui (“Mr. Wang”), aged 53, was appointed as an executive director of the Company on 5 July 2007.
Mr. Wang is also a director of Harbin Songjiang Copper (Group) Company Limited (“Harbin Songjiang”), a
subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Wang is also a director of two subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Wang graduated from Harbin Normal University in 1984 and is a senior economist. Mr. Wang has been
the chief advisor of Harbin Songjiang since April 2002 and mainly assisted Harbin Songjiang in assessing
and procuring exploration and mining projects, evaluating scale of mining operations and improving corporate
governance of the then state-owned enterprise. In November 2005, Mr. Wang extended his responsibilities in
Harbin Songjiang to formulation and execution of Harbin Songjiang’s overall business strategies and policies and
spearheading the growth of Harbin Songjiang’s business.

YEUNG Kwok Kuen

Mr. Yeung Kwok Kuen (“Mr. Yeung”), aged 39, was appointed as an executive director of the Company on 17
January 2007. Mr. Yeung is also the qualified accountant and chief financial officer of the Company. Mr. Yeung is
also a director of several subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Yeung graduated from The Chinese University of Hong Kong with a bachelor degree in Professional
Accountancy and obtained a master degree in Corporate Finance from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of
The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Yeung has over 17 years of experience in handling
accounting and finance matters. From 2004 to 2006, Mr. Yeung was the chief financial officer of a trading and
manufacturing group and prior to this, Mr. Yeung was the manager of an international accounting firm.

FANG Yi Quan

Mr. Fang Yi Quan (“Mr. Fang”), aged 63, was appointed as an executive director of the Company on 23
November 2011. Mr. Fang is also a director of several subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Fang was graduated from Fujian Medical University in September 1974 and is a senior economist. Mr.
Fang joined the PRC Communist Party in 1970 and was promoted as a military officer (&) to the Communist
Party in the same year. Mr. Fang participated in People’s Liberation Army from February 1968 to October 1999
and was honoured with Second Class (—%137)and Third Class (=%1))awards by the government of People’s
Republic of China. Mr. Fang has over 30 years of experience in management and his management effort has
been recognised by the Chinese government over the years. During his service with the People’s Liberation
Army, Mr. Fang worked in Fujian Mingging Pharmaceutical Factory (&[5 % %58 ) of the People’s Liberation
Army as factory director, Party Secretary (2Z%52)and legal representative A AfXZ). During his service,
Fujian Mingging Pharmaceutical Factory has received a number of awards from the People’s Liberation Army
General Logistic Department and Nanjun Military Region. From October 1999 to June 2011, Mr. Fang has been
working for Fujian Jingxie Group Company ({2215 @2 F])as its group chairman, general manager and
Party Secretary (2Z £ ). In 1996, Mr. Fang was awarded the rank of senior colonel by the Central Military
Commission.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MAN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
CHONG Cha Hwa

Mr. Chong Cha Hwa (“Mr. Chong”), aged 46, was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company on 23 November 2011.

Mr. Chong is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of the
Malaysian Institute of Accountants. Mr. Chong has obtained a degree of bachelor of management with honours
from the University of Science, Malaysia. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chong has gained more than 15 years of
experience in the accounting and finance area servicing private and publicly listed companies in Hong Kong and
the Southern Asia region. He is an independent non-executive director of Boshiwa International Holding Limited
(Stock Code: 1698), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). During the period from 3 December 2007 to 28 February 2013, Mr. Chong was an independent
non-executive director of Longlife Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8037), a company listed on The Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange. During the period from 1 July 2012 to 13 November 2012, Mr. Chong
was an executive director of RCG Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 802), a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. During the period from 19 October 2006 to 18 August 2011, Mr. Chong was an independent
non-executive director of CGN Mining Company Limited (Formerly known as Vital Group Holdings Limited) (Stock
Code: 1164), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Pursuant to a supplemental letter dated 4 December 2012, Mr. Chong would be entitled to an annual
remuneration of HK$240,000 with effect from 1 December 2012.

CHU Kang Nam

Mr. Chu Kang Nam (“Mr. Chu”), aged 56, was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company on 16 May 2007.

Mr. Chu graduated from Xiamen University with a Bachelor of Arts degree, and thereafter, has lectured at the
Xiamen University. Mr. Chu has worked in government departments of the Fujian Province of the PRC for the
period from June 1984 to November 1989, responsible for research and management positions in economics
and foreign trade areas. Mr. Chu has also assumed senior management positions at various trading and retail
companies since December 1989. In September 1995, he was employed as a research analyst at the Fujian
Provincial Government Development Research Centre. Mr. Chu has over 20 years of management and operation
experience in the areas of economics and trading. During the period from 1 August 2007 to 17 October 2012, Mr.
Chu was an independent director of Gushan Environmental Energy Limited, a company whose shares were listed
on the New York Stock Exchange and delisted since 17 October 2012.

Pursuant to a supplemental letter dated 4 December 2012, Mr. Chu would be entitled to an annual remuneration
of HK$180,000 with effect from 1 December 2012.

LIN Xiang Min

Mr. Lin Xiang Min (“Mr. Lin”), aged 65, was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company
on 31 January 2008.

Mr. Lin is a specialist in production safety of mining industry (TE%¥ %2 4% ). He graduated from Shandong
University of Science and Technology with a major in Mining Engineering (LI &4 A& ) in 1975. Mr. Lin was a
professor of the College of Environment and Resources (}23% 18 )R 27 ) of Fuzhou University (18I X2) for 32
years. During his time with Fuzhou University, Mr. Lin has conducted research and taught subjects mainly in the
areas of mining, mine safety and ventilation, industrial fire and explosion prevention, etc. Mr. Lin is currently a
specialist of the specialist team in coal mine safety (%% & 4 ZE Z 5 48 ) of Fujian Province. Mr. Lin was awarded
the honor of “FREH KB AIFEEHE A in 2006.

Pursuant to a supplemental letter dated 4 December 2012, Mr. Lin would be entitled to an annual remuneration
of HK$180,000 with effect from 1 December 2012.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANA(

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
YIN Guangyuan

Mr. Yin Guangyuan (“Mr. Yin”), aged 49, is a managing director of Harbin Songjiang, a subsidiary of the
Company. He graduated from Heilongjiang People’s Police School (282)1& ARZEZ£24)in 1982 and graduated
from Chinese People’s Public Security University (FREIA% K2 ) with a major in Law in 1986. Mr. Yin was
appointed as the chairman (FE ) of Songjiang Copper Group in 2001, the deputy general manager of Harbin
Songjiang in 2005, the general manager in 2007 and has been working at the present position since 2008. Mr.
Yin is currently responsible for the overall administration and operation management of Harbin Songjiang Group.
Mr. Yin is also a director of a subsidiary of the Company.

QIAO Hongbo

Mr. Qiao Hongbo (“Mr. Qiao”), aged 48, is a deputy general manager and director of Harbin Songjiang, a
subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Qiao graduated from Inner Mongolia University of Science and Technology
with a major in Mining in 1987 and is a senior mining engineer. Mr. Qiao joined Songjiang Copper Mine in 1987
and was appointed as the deputy mine manager of Acheng Xiaoling Iron & Zinc Mine in 1996, the principal of
the production division and the deputy general manager assistant of Songjiang Copper Group and the deputy
investigation manager of Songjiang Molybdenum Company (/AT #2732 5])in 1998, and has been working at the
present position since 2000. Mr. Qiao has over 20 years of working experience in mining sites and is an expert in
project management and mining project techniques, possessing extensive experience in geology mining, mining
sites’ management and construction. He is proficient in project management procedures and skill innovation, and
was awarded with Heilongjiang Technology Advancement Third Tier Award in Metallurgy System (23 TA& R
ZEH#ES =F %) . Mr. Qiao is currently responsible for the project management and technical supervision of
Harbin Songjiang Group. Mr. Qiao is also a director of a subsidiary of the Company.

QU Yanchun

Mr. Qu Yanchun (“Mr. Qu”), aged 41, is a deputy general manager and director of Harbin Songjiang, a subsidiary
of the Company. Mr. Qu graduated from the Department of Economics and Trading of Heilongjiang Institute of
Science in 1994, and is a Chinese Certified Public Accountant and Certified Public Valuer. Mr. Qu was appointed
as the officer of the financial division of Songjiang Copper Group in 1996, the director of financial division of
Songjiang Copper Group in 1999, the assistant to general manager and director of financial division of Harbin
Songjiang in 2004, has been working at the present position since 2007 and was appointed as the director
of Harbin Songjiang in 2008. Mr. Qu has 17 years of experience in financial management and is currently
responsible for the financial management of Harbin Songjiang Group. Mr. Qu is also a director of two subsidiaries
of the Company.

LEUNG Lai Ming

Ms. Leung Lai Ming (“Ms. Leung”), aged 36, is the company secretary and the accounting manager of the
Company. Ms. Leung graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a bachelor degree in
Accountancy. Ms. Leung is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
a fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and an associate member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. Ms. Leung has 14 years of experience in handling accounting matters.
Ms. Leung joined the Company in July 2007. Ms. Leung is also a director of several subsidiaries of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has a policy of seeking to comply with the established best practice in corporate governance.
The Board believes that good corporate governance is crucial to improve the efficiency and performance of the
Group and to safeguard the interests of its shareholders. For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company
has applied the principles of Code on Corporate Governance Practices as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) (the “Former Code”) and a
number of new requirements of the Code that took effect in 2012 (the “New Code”, together with the Former
Code, the “Code”), and the associated Listing Rules. During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company
has complied with all the applicable code provisions of the Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. The Company has made specific enquiry of all directors of
the Company regarding any non-compliance with the required standard set out in the Model Code and its code
of conduct regarding directors’ securities transaction during the year ended 31 December 2012, and they all
confirmed that they had fully complied with the Model Code.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition

Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report are as follows:
Executive Directors:

You Xian Sheng, Chairman

Chen Shou Wu, Deputy Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Chief Investment Officer
Wang Hui

Yeung Kwok Kuen, Chief Financial Officer

Fang Yi Quan

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Chong Cha Hwa

Chu Kang Nam

Lin Xiang Min

The biographical details of the directors of the Company are set out under the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

The composition of the Board is well balanced with the directors having sound industry knowledge, extensive
corporate and strategic planning experience and/or expertise relevant to the business of the Group.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
There is no relationship among the members of the Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Board had at all times at least three independent non-executive
directors of the Company and at least one independent non-executive director of the Company who has
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive directors of the Company an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the independent
non-executive directors of the Company to be independent.

Board Responsibilities and Delegation

The principal roles of the Board are to oversee the strategic development, to determine the objectives, strategies
and policies of the Group, to monitor and control the financial performance and to ensure effective internal
controls and risk management. Implementation of strategies and day-to-day operations are delegated to the
management. In order to better understand the respective accountabilities and contributions of the Board and
management, the Company has adopted written terms of reference specifying a schedule of matters which
should be reserved to the Board and which should be delegated to management.

Board Meetings and General Meetings

During the year, a total of twelve Board meetings (including four regular meetings) were held and the attendance
records are as follows:

Number of Board

Name of Directors Meetings Attended
You Xian Sheng 12/12
Chen Shou Wu 12/12
Wang Hui 12/12
Yeung Kwok Kuen (Note) 0/12
Fang Yi Quan 12/12
Chong Cha Hwa 12/12
Chu Kang Nam 10/12
Lin Xiang Min 12/12

Note: Duty as an executive director of the Company has been suspended since 2 January 2012.

During the year, a total of two general meetings of the Company were held and the attendance records are as

follows:

Name of Directors

Number of General
Meetings Attended

You Xian Sheng 2/2
Chen Shou Wu 2/2
Wang Hui 1/2
Yeung Kwok Kuen (Note) 0/2
Fang Yi Quan 1/2
Chong Cha Hwa 2/2
Chu Kang Nam 1/2
Lin Xiang Min 1/2

Note: Duty as an executive director of the Company has been suspended since 2 January 2012.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Induction and Professional Development

Upon appointment to the Board, each director of the Company is provide with guideline and reference materials
to enable them to familiarise with the Group’s business operations and Board’s policies, as well as the general
and specific duties of directors under general law (the common law and legislation) and the Listing Rules.

The directors of the Company have participated in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. The
continuous development programme comprised training sessions provided by professional bodies and reading
regulatory updated materials. The costs for such trainings are borne by the Company.

During the year, all directors of the Company have participated in continuous professional development and
provided a record of training they received to the Company. Individual participation in professional development
programme are as follows:

Name of Director Nature of professional development

You Xian Sheng Attended professional bodies training sessions and read regulatory updated materials
Chen Shou Wu Attended professional bodies training sessions and read regulatory updated materials
Wang Hui Attended professional bodies training sessions and read regulatory updated materials
Yeung Kwok Kuen Attended professional bodies training sessions and read regulatory updated materials
Fang Yi Quan Attended professional bodies training sessions and read regulatory updated materials
Chong Cha Hwa Attended professional bodies training sessions and read regulatory updated materials
Chu Kang Nam Attended professional bodies training sessions and read regulatory updated materials
Lin Xiang Min Attended professional bodies training sessions and read regulatory updated materials

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Dr. You Xian Sheng was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 31 January 2008 and
re-designated as the Chairman of the Company on 5 June 2009. Mr. Chen Shou Wu was appointed as the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company on 5 June 20009.

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are clearly defined by written terms of reference adopted by
the Company in order to ensure a balance of power and authority, so that power is not concentrated in any one
individual. The Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company are independent and not connected
with each other except for being officers of the same company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All the independent non-executive directors of the Company were appointed for an initial term of one year. All
directors of the Company appointed during the year are subject to re-election by shareholders at the next annual
general meeting after their appointment and every director of the Company (including those appointed for a
specific term) is subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years in accordance with the Bye-laws
of the Company.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee in 2005. The current members of the Remuneration
Committee are:

Chong Cha Hwa, Independent Non-executive Director, Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
Chu Kang Nam, Independent Non-executive Director

Lin Xiang Min, Independent Non-executive Director

Yeung Kwok Kuen, Executive Director

The Remuneration Committee has adopted terms of reference which are in line with the Code. A copy of the
terms of reference is posted on the Company’s website.

The Remuneration Committee is primarily responsible for the following duties:

1.

10.

to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for all remuneration of
directors and senior management of the Company and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing remuneration policy;

to review and approve the management’s remuneration proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate
goals and objectives;

to consult the chairman of the Board and/or the chief executive of the Company about their remuneration
proposals for other executive directors of the Company;

Either:

(i) to determine with delegated responsibility, the remuneration packages of individual executive
directors and senior management of the Company; or

(i) to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive
directors and senior management of the Company;

This should include benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment;

to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive directors of the Company;

to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities and employment
conditions elsewhere in the group;

to review and approve the compensation payable to executive directors and senior management of the
Company for any loss or termination of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with relevant
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to dismissal or removal of directors of
the Company for misconduct to ensure that they consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise

reasonable and appropriate;

to ensure that no director of the Company or any of his associates is involved in deciding his own
remuneration; and

to deal with any other matters delegated by the Board.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

The Remuneration Committee met three times during the year to review and determine the remuneration policies
and remuneration packages of the directors and members of the senior management of the Company.

Individual attendance of each member of the Remuneration Committee is set out below:

Number of

Remuneration

Committee

Meetings

Name of Members Attended
Chong Cha Hwa 3/3
Chu Kang Nam 2/3
Lin Xiang Min 3/3
Yeung Kwok Kuen (Note) 0/3

Note: Duty as a member of the Remuneration Committee has been suspended since 2 January 2012.

Details of the remuneration of the directors and chief executives of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2012 are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

Senior Management Remuneration By Band

The emoluments of the senior management of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 fell within the
following bands:

Number of
Emoluments bands (Note) individuals
HK$0 — HK$1,000,000 7
HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000 5

Note: The emoluments comprised share-based payments.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee in March 2012. The current members of the Nomination
Committee are:

Chong Cha Hwa, Independent Non-executive Director, Chairman of the Nomination Committee
Chu Kang Nam, Independent Non-executive Director
Lin Xiang Min, Independent Non-executive Director

The Nomination Committee has adopted terms of reference which are in line with the Code. A copy of the terms
of reference is posted on the Company’s website.

The Nomination Committee is primarily responsible for the following duties:

1. to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board
at least annually and make recommendations to the Board on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

2. to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and select or make recommendations
to the Board on the selection of, individuals nominated for directorships;

3. to assess the independence of independent non-executive directors of the Company;

4. to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession
planning for directors in particular the chairman and the chief executive of the Company;
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

5. to make recommendations to the Board on the membership of Board committees e.g. audit committee
and remuneration committee, in consultation with the chairman of the Board and the chairmen of such
committees, as appropriate;

6. before recommending an appointment of the Board, to evaluate the existing balance of skills, knowledge
and experience on the Board, and, in the light of this evaluation, prepare a description of the role and
capabilities required for a particular appointment; and

7. to deal with any other matters delegated by the Board.

The Nomination Committee met one time during the year to review the size, composition and structure of the
Board.

Individual attendance of each member of the Nomination Committee is set out below:

Number of

Nomination

Committee

Meetings

Name of Members Attended

Chong Cha Hwa 11
(Appointed as member and the Chairman of the Nomination Committee on 20 March 2012)

Chu Kang Nam 1M

(Appointed as member of the Nomination Committee on 20 March 2012)
Lin Xiang Min 1M

(Appointed as member of the Nomination Committee on 20 March 2012)

Each director of the Company appointed during the year is subject to re-election by shareholders of the Company
at the next annual general meeting of the Company after his appointment and every director of the Company
(including those appointed for a specific term) is subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years
in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.

No director of the Company is involved in fixing his own terms of appointment and nominations and no
independent non-executive director of the Company is involved in assessing his own independence.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

No corporate governance committee has been established and the Board is responsible for performing the
corporate governance functions including, but not limited to, developing and reviewing the Company’s policies,
practices on corporate governance, training and continuous professional development of directors, the
Company’s policies and practices in compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.

The Board has adopted terms of reference of the Board on corporate governance which in line with the Code in
March 2012. A copy of the terms of reference is posted on the Company’s website.

Summary of the terms of reference on corporate governance are as follows:

1. to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development of directors and senior
management of the Company;

3. to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS (CONTINUED)

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees and directors; and

5. to review the Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosures in the corporate governance report of
its annual reports.

During the year, the Board approved the terms of reference of the Nomination Committee and the revised terms
of reference of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee.

The Board has also reviewed and discussed the corporate governance policy and practices of the Company and
the Board discharged the abovesaid responsibilities or through delegation to the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee during the year.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Company established the Audit Committee in 1998. The current members of the Audit Committee are:

Chong Cha Hwa, Independent Non-executive Director, Chairman of the Audit Committee
Chu Kang Nam, Independent Non-executive Director
Lin Xiang Min, Independent Non-executive Director

The Audit Committee has adopted terms of reference which are in line with the Code. A copy of the terms of
reference is posted on the Company’s website.

The Audit Committee is primarily responsible for the following duties:

1. to be primarily responsible for making recommendation to the Board on the appointment, reappointment
and removal of the external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor, and any questions of its resignation or dismissal;

2. to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence and objectively and the effectiveness of the
audit process in accordance with applicable standard, to discuss with the external auditor the nature and
scope of the audit and reporting obligations before the audit commences;

3. to develop and implement policy on the engagement of an external auditor to supply non-audit services, to
report to the Board, identifying and making recommendations on any matters where action or improvement
is needed;

4. to monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements and annual report and accounts, half-year report

and, if prepared for publication, quarterly reports, and to review significant financial reporting judgements
contained in them;

5. regarding No. (4) above:

i to liaise with the Board and senior management of the Company and to meet, at least twice a year,
with the Company’s external auditors; and

ii. to consider any significant or unusual items that are, or may need to be, reflected in the report and
accounts, to give due consideration to any matters that have been raised by the Company’s staff

responsible for the accounting and financial reporting function, compliance officer or auditors;

6. to review the Company’s financial control, internal control and risk management systems;
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

to discuss the internal control system with management to ensure that management has performed its duty
to have an effective internal control system including the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function;

to consider major investigations findings on internal control matters as delegated by the Board or on its
own initiative and management’s response to these findings;

where an internal audit function exists, to ensure co-ordination between the internal and external auditors,
and to ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced and has appropriate standing within
the Company, and to review and monitor its effectiveness;

to review the group’s financial and accounting policies and practices;

to review the external auditor’'s management letter, any material queries raised by the auditor to
management about accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control and management’s

response;

to ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the issues raised in the external auditor’'s
management letter;

to report to the Board on the matters set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules “Corporate Governance
Code and Corporate Governance Report”;

to consider the major findings of internal investigations and management’s response;

to consider other topics, as defined by the Board or handle the job assigned by the Board;

to review arrangements employees of the Company can use, in confidence, to raise concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other matters and to ensure that proper
arrangements are in place for fair and independent investigation of these matters and for appropriate

follow-up action; and

to act as the key representative body for overseeing the Company’s relations with the external auditor.

The Audit Committee met twelve times during the year to review the Group’s annual and interim financial
statements, review the external auditor’s plan for the audit of the Group’s accounts, review the internal control
procedures and the financial reporting systems of the Group, make recommendations with respect to the
appointment and reappointment of the auditors of the Company, and review and the appointment of external
professional parties for the review of the internal control system.

Individual attendance of each member of the Audit Committee is set out below:

Number of Audit
Committee Meetings

Name of Members Attended
Chong Cha Hwa 12/12
Chu Kang Nam 10/12
Lin Xiang Min 12/12

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group engaged ZHONGLEI (HK) CPA Company Limited
(“ZHONGLELI"), auditors of the Company, to perform audit services and non-audit services. The fees were as
follows:

Nature of services Amount
HK$°000

Audit services in relation to annual results 1,430
Review of interim results 550
Others 85
2,065

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Leung Lai Ming (“Ms. Leung”) was appointed as the company secretary of the Company on 16 July 2007.
The biographical detail of Ms. Leung is set out under the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” of this annual report.

For purpose of the Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Ms. Leung has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training for the year ended 31 December 2012 and the costs for such trainings are borne by the
Company.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT
Convening an extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, an extraordinary general meeting of the Company (“EGM”) can be
convened by a written requisition signed by the shareholder(s) of the Company holding not less than one-tenth of
the paid-up share capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company, stating
the objects of the meeting, and deposited at the head office and principal place of business of the Company
in Hong Kong at Room 1306, 13/F., Bank of America Tower, 12 Harcourt Road, Admiralty, Hong Kong for the
attention of the Board or the company secretary of the Board. Such meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting should be held within two months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, but any meeting so convened
shall not be held after the expiration of three months from the said date.

Putting forward proposals at shareholders’ meetings

The procedures for shareholder(s) to put forward proposals at EGM include a written notice of those proposals
being submitted by the shareholder(s) of the Company, addressed to the Board or the company secretary of the
Board at the head office and principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at Room 1306, 13/F.,

Bank of America Tower, 12 Harcourt Road, Admiralty, Hong Kong.

The procedures for shareholders of the Company to propose a person for election as a director of the Company
are available on the Company’s website.

Enquiries to the Board
Shareholders of the Company may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the Board in writing to the

head office and principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at Room 1306, 13/F., Bank of America
Tower, 12 Harcourt Road, Admiralty, Hong Kong.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

Information of the Group is delivered to the shareholders of the Company through a number of channels, which
include annual reports, interim reports, announcements and circulars at the Company’s website. The latest
information of the Group together with the published documents are also available on the Company’s website.

The general meeting of the Company provides a forum for communication between the Board and the
shareholders of the Company. The Board members or their delegates are available to answer questions at the
general meeting.

There had been no change in the Company’s constitutional documents during the year ended 31 December
2012.

Shareholders of the Company should direct their questions about their shareholdings to the Company’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong, Union Registrars Limited, at 18/F., Fook Lee Commercial Centre, Town Place, 33
Lockhart Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

Shareholders of the Company can mail other enquiries or comments to the head office and principal place
of business of the Company in Hong Kong at Room 1306, 13/F., Bank of America Tower, 12 Harcourt Road,
Admiralty, Hong Kong or sent through email to enquiry@chinaminingresources.com.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

It is the policy of the Company to maintain a sound and effective internal control system to safeguard the
shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets. The directors of the Company have reviewed the effectiveness
of the internal control system of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012, which covered financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, as part of a key step towards the resumption of trading of the
shares of the Company, the Company has engaged an independent internal control adviser (the “IC Adviser”)
to perform a review of the Company’s internal control systems and the IC Adviser completed and issued the
internal control review report (the “Review Report”) in April 2012. The Review Report identified certain internal
control weaknesses and contained recommendations to the Company and the Company has then implemented
the internal control procedures recommended by the IC Adviser. In December 2012, the Company engaged an
external professional party (the “Professional Party”) to conduct a follow-up review on the implementation of
the internal control procedures recommended by the IC Adviser provided in the Review Report (the “Follow-
up Review”) and the Professional Party completed the Follow-up Review in March 2013 and confirmed that all
recommendations relating to significant weaknesses made by the IC Adviser have been implemented by the
Company.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company acknowledge that it is their responsibility to prepare the accounts for each financial
period which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and to present a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of the financial results and disclosures of the Group under the Listing Rules and
any other rules and statutory requirements. The directors of the Company are responsible for ensuring that
appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied consistently; judgments and estimates made are
prudent and reasonable; and the accounts are prepared on a going concern basis.

The responsibility of the external auditor of the Company is to form an independent opinion, based on their audit,
on those consolidated financial statements prepared by the Board and to report their opinion to the shareholders

of the Company. A statement by the external auditor of the Company about their reporting responsibility is set
out under the section headed “Independent Auditor’'s Report” of this annual report.

On behalf of the Board
China Mining Resources Group Limited

You Xian Sheng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2013
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The directors of the Company submit herewith their annual report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities and other particulars of the
subsidiaries are set out in note 48 to the consolidated financial statements.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations of the operations of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) during the financial year are set out in note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 and the Group’s affairs as at that date are set
out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 35 to 119.

The directors of the Company do not recommend the payment of a dividend in respect of the year ended 31
December 2012.

RESERVES

Movement in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on pages 39 to 40 of this annual report.

DONATION

Donations made for charitable purposes by the Group during the year amounted to HK$321,000 (2011:
HK$816,000).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the year are set out in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CONTRIBUTED SURPLUS

The Group’s contributed surplus represents the special reserve arising upon the reorganisation of the Group in
March 1997.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed surplus is also available for
distribution to shareholders. However, the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out
of contributed surplus if:

(a) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued
share capital and share premium account.

Movement in the contributed surplus of the Group during the year is set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on pages 39 to 40 of this annual report.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 are set out
in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company who were in office during the financial year and up to the date of this report were:
Executive Directors

You Xian Sheng
(Chairman)
Chen Shou Wu
(Deputy Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Chief Investment Officer)
Wang Hui
Yeung Kwok Kuen
(Chief Financial Officer)
Fang Yi Quan

Independent Non-executive Directors

Chong Cha Hwa
Chu Kang Nam
Lin Xiang Min

Pursuant to Bye-law 87(1) of the Bye-laws of the Company, at each annual general meeting one-third of the
directors of the Company for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to
but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation. Accordingly, Dr. You Xian Sheng, Mr. Chu Kang
Nam and Mr. Lin Xiang Min will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
Each of Dr. You Xian Sheng, Mr. Chu Kang Nam and Mr. Lin Xiang Min being eligible, have offered themselves
for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
None of the directors of the Company has an unexpired service contract which is not determinable by the

Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2012, the interests and short positions of the directors and chief executives of the Company
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Future Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFQ”))
as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code adopted by the Company were as follows:

Interests in underlying shares of the Company — share options

% of total

issued

Number of ordinary shares

Name share options of the Company
Directors

You Xian Sheng 90,000,000 0.98%

Chen Shou Wu 90,000,000 0.98%

Wang Hui 50,000,000 0.55%

Yeung Kwok Kuen 90,000,000 0.98%

Chu Kang Nam 6,000,000 0.07%

Lin Xiang Min 6,000,000 0.07%

Chief executives

Yin Guangyuan 50,000,000 0.55%
Qiao Hongbo 12,000,000 0.13%
Qu Yanchun 12,000,000 0.13%

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, none of the directors and chief executives of the Company or
their respective associates had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as is known to any director or chief executive of the Company, as at 31 December 2012, persons (other
than directors or chief executives of the Company as disclosed above) who had interests or short positions in
the shares and underlying shares of equity derivatives of the Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long position in shares of the Company

% of total
issued share capital of
Class of the relevant
Name of shares of the Number class of shares
Shareholders Capacity Company of shares held (Note 1)
Wong Chiu Fung Interest in controlled Ordinary 1,633,334,286 17.87%
corporation (Note 2)

Interest in controlled Preference 476,190,000 12.61%
corporation (Note 2)

Ho Ping Tanya Beneficial owner Preference 3,300,000,000 87.39%
(Note 3)

Notes:

1. The percentages are calculated based on the total number of ordinary shares and non-redeemable convertible
preference shares (as appropriate) of the Company in issue as at 31 December 2012, which were 9,138,782,211 and
3,776,190,000 respectively.

2. These ordinary and non-redeemable convertible preference shares are held by Double Joy Enterpise Limited which is
100% beneficially owned by Mr. Wong Chiu Fung. Both ordinary and non-redeemable convertible preference shares
were alloted and issued to Double Joy Enterprise Limited on 14 December 2010 pursuant to a sale and purchase
agreement dated 2 October 2010 entered into among Famous Class Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, Ms. Ho Ping Tanya, Double Joy Enterprise Limited, Skypro Holdings Limited and Mr. Wong Chiu Fung in
relation to the acquisition of an aggregate of 70 shares of Year Joy Investments Limited, representing 70% of the total
issued share capital of Year Joy Investments Limited, by Famous Class Limited (the “Agreement”).

3. The non-redeemable convertible preference shares were alloted and issued to Ms. Ho Ping Tanya on 14 December

2010 pursuant to the Agreement.
SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Pursuant to ordinary resolutions of the shareholders of the Company passed on 26 June 2002, the Company
adopted a share option scheme (the “Old Share Option Scheme”). The Old Share Option Scheme was terminated
on 25 May 2012 such that no further options shall be granted under the Old Share Option Scheme but the
options granted shall continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance with their terms of issue and, in all other
respects, its provisions shall remain in full force and effect. Pursuant to ordinary resolutions of the shareholders
of the Company passed on 25 May 2012, the Company adopted a new share option scheme (the “New Share
Option Scheme”).
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (conTinuED)

Particulars of New Share Option Scheme are set out in note 43 to the consolidated financial statements.

Summary of main terms of New Share Option Scheme are as follows:

1.

The purpose of the New Share Option Scheme is to enable the Company to grant options to selected
participants as incentives or rewards for their contributions to the Group.

The participants of the New Share Option Scheme are: (i) any director (whether executive or
non-executive or independent non-executive), employee (whether full time or part time), officer, consultant,
customer, supplier, agent, partner or advisers of or contractor to the Group or an entity in which any
member of the Group holds any interest from time to time (“Invested Entity”); (ii) any discretionary trust
who discretionary objects include any director (whether executive or non-executive or independent
non-executive), employee (whether full time or part time), officer, consultant, customer, supplier, agent,
partner or adviser of or contractor to the Group or any Invested Entity; and (iii) the option may be granted
to any corporation wholly-owned by any person mentioned in (i).

As at 25 March 2013, the total number of ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the capital of the Company
(“Shares”) available for issue under the New Share Option Scheme was 913,878,221 representing
approximately 10% of the issued ordinary share capital of the Company.

Unless otherwise approved by shareholders of the Company in general meeting, the total number of
Shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon exercise of the options granted under the New Share
Option Scheme to each participant in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% (except for substantial
shareholders, as defined in the Listing Rules, or independent non-executive director of the Company, or
any of their respective associates, as defined in the Listing Rules, must not exceed 0.1%) of the issued
ordinary share capital of the Company from time to time.

An option shall be exercised in whole or in part in accordance with the terms of the New Share Option
Scheme at any time during a period to be notified by the Board to each grantee, provided that no option
shall be exercisable later than 10 years after its date of grant.

An option shall be accepted by a participant together with a remittance in favour of the Company of
HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant thereof within 30 days from the date of the offer of grant of
the option.

The subscription price for Shares under the New Share Option Scheme, subject to any adjustment
stipulated therein, shall be a price determined by the Board, but shall be at least the highest of (i) the
closing price of Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations on the date of grant which
must be a business day, (ii) the average closing price of Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations for the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant and (iii) the nominal value of
a Share.

The New Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years commencing on 25
May 2012.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (conTinuED)
No share options was granted for the year ended 31 December 2012 under the New Share Option Scheme.

Details of movements in the share options held by directors, chief executives, employees and other parties of the
Company under the Old Share Option Scheme for the year ended 31 December 2012 are as follows:

No. of
No. of shares * Market * Market
options No. of No.of  acquired on No. of value per value per
outstanding options options  exercise of options share at share on
Period during at the granted cancelled options  outstanding Exercise date of exercise
Date which options beginning during during during at the price per grant of of
Name granted are exercisable of the year the year the year the year year end share options options
Share option granted in 2008
Directors
You Xian Sheng 14 Qctober 2008 (Note 1) 40,000,000 - - — 40,000,000 HKS0.275 HKS0.275 -
Chen Shou Wu 14 October 2008 (Note 1) 35,000,000 - - — 35,000,000 HK$0.275 HKS0.275 -
Wang Hui 14 October 2008 (Note 1) 35,000,000 - - — 35,000,000 HK$0.275 HKS0.275 -
Yeung Kwok Kuen 14 Qctober 2008 (Note 1) 35,000,000 - - — 35,000,000 HK$0.275 HK$0.275 -
Chu Kang Nam 14 October 2008 (Note 1) 3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000 HK$0.275 HK$0.275 -
Lin Xiang Min 14 October 2008 (Note 1) 3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000 HK$0.275 HK$0.275 -
151,000,000 151,000,000
Chief executives
Yin Guangyuan 14 October 2008 (Note 1) 35,000,000 - - — 35,000,000 HK$0.275 HK$0.275 -
Qiao Hongho 14 October 2008 (Note 1) 10,000,000 - - — 10,000,000 HK$0.275 HK$0.275 -
Qu Yanchun 14 October 2008 (Note 1) 10,000,000 - - — 10,000,000 HK$0.275 HKS0.275 -
55,000,000 55,000,000
Employee 14 October 2008 (Note 1) 26,600,000 - - — 26,600,000 HK$0.275 HK$0.275 -
Former directors (Note 4) 14 October 2008 (Note 1) 9,000,000 - - - 9,000,000 HKS$0.275 HKS0.275 -
Others (Nofe 5) 14 October 2008 (Note 1) 50,000,000 - - — 50,000,000 HK$0.275 HKS0.275 -
291,600,000 - - — 291,600,000
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (conTinuED)

No. of
No. of shares * Market * Market
options No. of No.of  acquired on No. of value per value per
outstanding options options ~ exercise of options share at share on
Period during at the granted cancelled options  outstanding Exercise date of exercise
Date which options beginning during during during at the price per grant of of
Name granted are exercisable of the year the year the year the year year end share options options
Share option granted in 2010
Directors
You Xian Sheng 29 June 2010 (Note 2) 20,000,000 - - — 20,000,000 HK§0.208 HK$0.208 -
Chen Shou Wu 29 June 2010 (Note 2) 25,000,000 - - — 25,000,000 HK$0.208 HK$0.208 -
Wang Hui 29 June 2010 (Note 2) 5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000 HK$0.208 HK$0.208 -
Yeung Kwok Kuen 29 June 2010 (Note 2) 25,000,000 - - — 25,000,000 HK$0.208 HK$0.208 -
Chu Kang Nam 29 June 2010 (Note 2) 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000 HK$0.208 HK$0.208 -
Lin Xiang Min 29 June 2010 (Note 2) 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000 HK$0.208 HK$0.208 -
79,000,000 79,000,000
Chief executives
Yin Guangyuan 29 June 2010 (Note 2) 5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000 HK$0.208 HK$0.208 -
Qiao Hongho 29 June 2010 (Note 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000 HK$0.208 HK$0.208 -
Qu Yanchun 29 June 2010 (Note 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000 HK§0.208 HK$0.208 -
9,000,000 9,000,000
Employee 29 June 2010 (Note 2) 33,400,000 - - — 33,400,000 HK$0.208 HK$0.208 -
Former directors (Note 6) 29 June 2010 (Note 2) 6,000,000 - - - 6,000,000 HK$0.208 HKS0.208 -
127,400,000 - - — 127,400,000
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (conTinuED)

No. of
No. of shares * Market * Market
options No. of No.of  acquired on No. of value per value per
outstanding options options  exercise of options share at share on
Period during at the granted cancelled options  outstanding Exercise date of exercise
Date which options beginning during during during at the price per grant of of
Name granted are exercisable of the year the year the year the year year end share options options
Share option granted in 2011
Directors
You Xian Sheng 30 August 2011 (Note 3) 30,000,000 - - — 30,000,000 HKS0.161 HKS0.161 -
Chen Shou Wu 30 August 2011 (Note 3) 30,000,000 - - — 30,000,000 HKS0.161 HKS0.161 -
Wang Hui 30 August 2011 (Note 3) 10,000,000 - - — 10,000,000 HKS0.161 HKS0.161 -
Yeung Kwok Kuen 30 August 2011 (Note 3) 30,000,000 - - — 30,000,000 HK$0.161 HK$0.161 -
Chu Kang Nam 30 August 2011 (Note 3) 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 HKS0.161 HK$0.161 -
Lin Xiang Min 30 August 2011 (Note 3) 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 HKS0.161 HKS0.161 -
102,000,000 102,000,000
Chief executive
Yin Guangyuan 30 August 2011 (Note 3) 10,000,000 - - — 10,000,000 HK$0.161 HK$0.161 -
Employee 30 August 2011 (Note 3) 44,300,000 - - — 44300000 HKS0.161 HKS0.161 -
Former directors (Note 7) 30 August 2011 (Note 3) 3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000 HKS0.161 HKS0.161 -
Others (Note ) 30 August 2011 (Note 3) 210,000,000 - - — 210,000,000 HK$0.161 HK$0.161 -
369,300,000 - - — 369,300,000

The options granted to the directors and the chief executives of the Company are registered under the names of
the directors and the chief executives of the Company who are also the beneficial owners.

* Being the weighted average closing price of the Company’s ordinary shares immediately before the dates on which the
options were granted or exercised, as applicable.

Notes:

1. Exercisable from 14 October 2008 to 13 October 2013.

2. Exercisable from 29 June 2010 to 28 June 2015.

3. Exercisable from 30 August 2011 to 29 August 2016.

4. (i) 3,000,000 share options was granted to Mr. Lam Ming Yung on 14 October 2008 and Mr. Lam Ming Yung was

resigned as a director of the Company on 29 December 2011.

(i) 3,000,000 share options was granted to Mr. Chan Sze Hon on 14 October 2008 and Mr. Chan Sze Hon was
resigned as a director of the Company on 23 November 2011.

(iii) 3,000,000 share options was granted to Mr. Goh Choo Hwee on 14 October 2008 and Mr. Goh Choo Hwee was
resigned as a director of the Company on 23 November 2011.

ANNUAL REPORT 2012 CHINA MINING RESOURCES GROUP LIMITED 29



30

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (conTinuED)

Notes: (CONTINUED)
5. 50,000,000 share options were granted to a chief adviser of the Company and a consulting company.

6. (i) 2,000,000 share options was granted to Mr. Lam Ming Yung on 29 June 2010 and Mr. Lam Ming Yung was
resigned as a director of the Company on 29 December 2011.

(i) 2,000,000 share options was granted to Mr. Chan Sze Hon on 29 June 2010 and Mr. Chan Sze Hon was
resigned as a director of the Company on 23 November 2011.

(iii) 2,000,000 share options was granted to Mr. Goh Choo Hwee on 29 June 2010 and Mr. Goh Choo Hwee was
resigned as a director of the Company on 23 November 2011.

7. (i) 1,000,000 share options was granted to Mr. Lam Ming Yung on 30 August 2011 and Mr. Lam Ming Yung was
resigned as a director of the Company on 29 December 2011.

(i) 1,000,000 share options was granted to Mr. Chan Sze Hon on 30 August 2011 and Mr. Chan Sze Hon was
resigned as a director of the Company on 23 November 2011.

(iii) 1,000,000 share options was granted to Mr. Goh Choo Hwee on 30 August 2011 and Mr. Goh Choo Hwee was
resigned as a director of the Company on 23 November 2011.

8. 210,000,000 share options were granted to the consultancy companies of the Group.

Information on the accounting policy for share options granted and the weighted average value per option is
provided in note 43 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was the Company, or any of its holding company,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contract of significance to which the Company, or any of its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a director of the Company had a material interest directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and/or administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed during the year.

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S SHARES

The Company has not redeemed any of its securities during the year ended 31 December 2012. Neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the Company’s securities during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

None of the “Related party transactions” as disclosed in note 46 to the financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2012 constituted discloseable non-exempted connected transaction or non-exempted continuing
connected transaction under the Listing Rules.

To the extent of the above “Related party transactions” constituted connected transaction as defined in the
Listing Rules, the Company had complied with the relevant requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules

during the year.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases attributable to the major customers and suppliers
respectively during the financial year is as follows:

Percentage of
the Group’s total

Sales Purchases
The largest customer 20%
Five largest customers in aggregate 40%
The largest supplier 4%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate 15%

At no time during the year have the directors of the Company, their associates or any shareholders of the
Company (which to the knowledge of the directors of the Company owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) had any interest in these major customers and suppliers.

COMPETING INTEREST

None of the directors of the Company or their respective associates had any interest in a business which
competes with or may compete with the business of the Group.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws of the Company or the laws of Bermuda
requiring the Company to offer new shares to the existing shareholders of the Company in proportion to their
respective shareholdings in the Company if new shares of the Company are issued.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the directors of
the Company as at the date of this annual report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under
the Listing Rules.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2012 are set out in notes 31 and
32 to the consolidated financial statements.

FIVE YEARS SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is set out
on page 120 of this annual report.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Details of the retirement benefit schemes operated by the Group are set out in note 42 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive directors of the Company an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the independent
non-executive directors of the Company to be independent.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
No significant events occuring after the balance sheet date.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Information on the corporate governance practices adopted by the Company is set out under the section headed
“Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2012 have been audited
by ZHONGLEI (HK) CPA Company Limited (“ZHONGLEI”"). ZHONGLEI were appointed as auditors of the
Company on 10 February 2012 for the financial year ended 31 December 2011 upon the resignation of Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu, who have acted as auditors of the Company for the preceding three financial years.

ZHONGLEI will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. A resolution for the re-appointment of ZHONGLEI as auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the

forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

By order of the Board
China Mining Resources Group Limited

You Xian Sheng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2013
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Vg | % (&) EtiEHAERAST
ZHONGLEI (HK) CPA Company Limited

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA MINING RESOURCES GROUP LIMITED
THERREREEGRAF

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Mining Resources Group Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 35 to 119, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2012, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group
as at 31 December 2012, and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

OTHER MATTERS

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 26 to the consolidated financial statements that Dongbei
Special Steel Group Company Limited (“Dongbei Steel”) is the Group’s major customer in molybdenum segment
who accounted for approximately HK$25,370,000 or 11% of the consolidated revenue for the year ended 31
December 2012 and its respective trade receivable is approximately HK$54,852,000 or 74% of the total trade
receivables at 31 December 2012. Hence, the Group is exposed to operational risk and credit risk arising from
dependency on Dongbei Steel.

ZHONGLEI (HK) CPA Company Limited
Certified Public Accountants (Practising)

Chan Mei Mei

Practising Certificate Number: P05256
Suites 313-317, 3/F., Shui On Centre,
6-8 Harbour Road,

Wan Chai,

Hong Kong

25 March 2013
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

2012 2011
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000

Continuing operations
Revenue 6 221,646 241,649
Cost of sales (126,623) (136,190)
Gross profit 95,023 105,459
Other income 8 12,658 11,877
Other gains and losses 9 32,017 257,436
Selling and distribution expenses (57,121) (51,275)
Administrative expenses (85,771) (127,136)
Finance costs 10 (23,206) (27,476)
Impairment losses recognised in respect of available-for-sale

investments 24 (57,913) (11,781)
Impairment losses recognised in respect of inventories (13,018) —
Impairment losses recognised in respect of property,

plant and equipment 17 (16,832) —
Impairment losses recognised in respect of other intangible assets 21 (7,874) —
(Loss) profit before tax (122,037) 157,104
Income tax credit 11 1,804 6,265
(Loss) profit for the year from continuing operations (120,233) 163,369
Discontinued operation 12
Profit for the year from discontinued operation, net of income tax — 11,548
(Loss) profit for the year 13 (120,233) 174,917
Other comprehensive income (expense)
Exchange differences arising on translation 12,925 (2,842)
Fair value loss on available-for-sale investments 24 (39,819) (136,129)
Actuarial loss on defined benefit pension plans (4,109) (1,479)
Other comprehensive expense for the year,

net of income tax (31,003) (140,450)
Total comprehensive (expense) income for the year (151,236) 34,467
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

2012 2011
Notes HK$°’000 HK$°000
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company
(Loss) profit for the year from continuing operations (110,858) 70,561
Profit for the year from discontinued operation — 11,548
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to owners
of the Company (110,858) 82,109
Non-controlling interests
(Loss) profit for the year from continuing operations (9,375) 92,808
(Loss) profit for the year (120,233) 174,917
Total comprehensive (expense) income attributable to:
Owners of the Company (143,892) (56,650)
Non-controlling interests (7,344) 91,117
(151,236) 34,467
(Loss) earnings per share 16
From continuing and discontinued operations
Basic (HK cents) (1.21) cents 0.90 cents
Diluted (HK cents) (1.21) cents 0.70 cents
From continuing operations
Basic (HK cents) (1.21) cents 0.77 cents
Diluted (HK cents) (1.21) cents 0.61 cents
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AT 31 DECEMBER 2012

2012 2011
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 17 119,237 133,919
Prepaid lease payments 18 31,104 29,728
Exploration and evaluation assets 19 — —
Goodwill 20 88,295 88,295
Other intangible assets 21 154,017 159,032
Biological assets 22 8,043 12,264
Available-for-sale investments 24 128,149 222,092
528,845 645,330
Current assets
Inventories 25 172,731 182,431
Trade and other receivables 26 160,757 135,033
Prepaid lease payments 18 532 3,562
Short-term loan and loan interest receivables 27 17,084 16,230
Bank balances and cash 28 117,073 152,829
468,177 490,085
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 29 281,887 254,446
Tax liabilities 59,543 61,198
Bank borrowings 31 67,496 32,956
Other borrowings 32 1,754 1,221
Provisions 33 5,924 6,428
416,604 356,249
Net current assets 51,573 133,836
Total assets less current liabilities 580,418 779,166
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AT 31 DECEMBER 2012

2012 2011
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
Non-current liabilities
Deferred income 34 61,533 53,835
Other borrowings 32 4,738 5,238
Provisions 33 73,746 104,060
Deferred tax liabilities 35 6,156 8,303
Other long-term payables 36 53,912 76,525
Non-redeemable convertible preference shares 37 52,702 52,338
252,787 300,299
327,631 478,867
Capital and reserves
Share capital 38 913,878 913,878
Share premium and reserves (774,165) (629,841)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 139,713 284,037
Non-controlling interests 187,918 194,830
327,631 478,867

The consolidated financial statements on pages 35 to 119 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board
of Directors on 25 March 2013 and are signed on its behalf by:

You Xian Sheng Chen Shou Wu
Director Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

Atibutable to owners of the Company

Nor-
redeemable
convertle — Statufory Capla Share Investment Nor
Share Share  preference suplus— and ofher oplions~ reveluain ~~ Translaton Actuarial  Accumulated confrlling
capital premim heres fesene fesene fesene fesene fesene fesene losses Total nfresfs Total
HKSOOD RSO0 HKSOOD  HKSO0  HRSOM0  HKSOD  HKSOND  RKSODD  RKSOOD  RKSUOD  HKSOOD HKSOOD HKSOOO
(Note 38) (Note 37) (Nofe 43— (Note 24) (Note 33)
A1 January 2011 asems 3190067 84,321 104,3% 08 4611 17548 4056% (604) (518007 40860 Tg0 499267
Proft for the year - - - - - - - - - 82109 82109 92408 (1
Exchange diference arsing on ransleion - - - - - - - (1,506) - - (1,506) (133) (284)
Falr value oss on avalable-forsel investmens - - - - - - 1% - - - (1% - (1%
Actuaraloss on defied beneft
pension plans - - - - - - - - (1124 - (1124) (355) (1419)
Other comprehensive expense
forhe year - - - - - - (1% (1,506) (114) - (175 (1681)  (M0450)
Total comprehensive (expense) income fr the year - - - - - - (%1 (1,506) (1124 82,109 (56,650) NIl e
Recognion of equiy-sefted
share-vased paymen's - - - - - 29,768 - - - - 29768 - 29768
Waived loan from non-controllng
sharcholders (Note 30) - - - - 388 - - - - - 8% 1540 6,373
Disposal of subsiiaries (Note 39) - - - () - - - (s - - (g (34 (151,008
Transfer (Notes (g) and (3) - - - 128 2589 - - - - (380) - - -
At 31 December 2011 g3gme 31047 4 321 103,086 62,704 7383 19819 27100 (1169 (o%0%8) 2008 194830 478,867

ANNUAL REPORT 2012 CHINA MINING RESOURCES GROUP LIMITED 39



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

Atfributabl to owners of the Company

Non-
redeemable
convertible ~ Statutory Capial Share ~ Investment Non-
Share Share ~ preference surplus—— and other options~revluation ~ Translaion ~ Actuarial  Accumulated controlling
capital -~ premium shares Teserve Teserve Teserve Teserve Teserve Teserve [osses Totdl  interests Total
HKSO00  HKSOMO  HKSOMO  HKSODO  HKSOD0 RSO0 HKSOO0 RSO0 RKSOO0 RSO0 HKSOO0  HKSOOO  HKSOOO
(Note 36) (Note 37) (Note 43— (Note 24) (Note 33)
A1 January 2012 9sens 310007 84321 105,086 62,704 758 39819 27100 (1169 (5030008 20408 194830 418,067
Loss forthe year - - - - - - - - - (Mog) (M0gs) 031 (102
Exchange diference arsing on ransleion - - - - - - - 94882 - - 9882 30 12925
Fair vlue loss on avalable-or-sale invesmen's - - - - - - (39,819) - - - (39,819) - (39,819)
Actuaraloss on defied beneft
fension plans - - - - - - - - (300 - (300 (102 (4109)
Other comarehensive (expense) income for he year - - - - - - (39819) 9562 (308 - (3505 W0 (31,009
Total comprehensive (expense) income fo te year - - - - - - (39.819) 9862 [0 mogse) (14389 (134 (161,286)
Transfer (Notes (g) and (3) - - - - 1307 - - - - (17%9) (432) i -
At 31 December 2012 LKL RN 84321 105,086 64,011 1583 - 266,982 (fo26)  (sf5408 1373 187918 301,63
Notes:
(a) According to the relevant rules and regulations in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”), subsidiaries of the Group

established in the PRC are required to transfer 10% of their net profit, as determined in accordance with the PRC
accounting standards and regulations, to the statutory surplus reserve until the balance of the reserve reaches 50% of
their respective registered capital. The transfer to this reserve must be made before distribution of dividends to owners
of these subsidiaries. Statutory surplus reserve can be used to make good previous years’ losses, if any, and may be
converted into capital in proportion to existing equity owners’ equity percentage, provided that the balance after such
issuance is not less than 25% of their registered capital.

(b) Pursuant to regulations <% &4 & & B IZEUAIE A B2 Y85 > issued on 14 February 2012 (2011: < @B T (0 ¥ELT 24 E
ERPKERETH%L >) in the PRC relating to the mining industry, the Group is required to transfer an amount to the
capital reserve. The amount is calculated based on the volume of ores excavated each year and at the applicable rate
per tonne of ores (“Appropriation for Mining Company”). The utilisation of the amount in the capital reserve will be used
on modification and maintenance of safety equipment in accordance with the rules in the PRC Company Law and is not
available for distribution to shareholders.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

2012 2011
Notes HK$’000 HK$000
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(Loss) profit before tax from continuing operations (122,037) 157,104
Profit from discontinued operations — 11,548
Adjustments for:
Interest income (5,957) (5,920)
Interest expenses 10 23,206 27,476
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 17 14,379 17,026
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments 1,848 5,831
Amortisation of other intangible assets 21 2,854 3,104
Waived of loan interest — (1,149)
Waived of debt of other payables — (2,731)
Reversal of purchase costs as expense — (50,449)
(Loss) gain on changes in fair value less costs-to-sell for biological
assets 22 4,063 (184)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries — (158,328)
(Loss) gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment and
prepaid lease payments 5,411 (38,447)
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale investments — 191
Impairment losses recognised in respect of available-for-sale
investments 57,913 11,781
Loss on disposal of held-for-trading investments — 34,292
Gain on changes of estimation on land reclamation
and cavity refill cost 33 (41,121) (42,493)
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses — 29,768
Government grants (5,264) (4,211)
Impairment losses recognised in respect of trade and
other receivables 6,597 4,131
Impairment losses recognised in respect of other intangible assets 7,874 —
Impairment losses recognised in respect of property, plant and
equipment 16,832 —
Impairment losses recognised in respect of inventories 13,018 —
Written-off of inventories 5,337 —
Reversal of impairment losses in respect of trade and
other receivables (5,867) (3,649)
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital (20,914) (5,309)
Increase in inventories (17,383) (17,677)
Increase in trade and other receivables (26,453) (44,603)
Increase (decrease) in trade and other payables 20,736 (17,582)
Increase in provisions 6,010 3,595
Cash used in operations (38,004) (81,576)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid (3,653) (4,083)
NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (41,657) (85,659)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

2012 2011
Note HK$’000 HK$°000

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (44,493) (37,529)
Purchases of prepaid lease payment — (100)
Purchases of other intangible assets (288) (1,740)
Proceeds on other receivable previously written-off 9 — 50,449
Purchases of available-for-sale investments — (85,852)
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries — 12,578
Interest received 5,103 5,920
Utilisation of provisions (771) (3,443)
Government grants received 4,569 12,995
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale investments — 39,259
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment

and prepaid lease payments 19,249 38,566
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (16,631) 31,103
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of bank borrowings (78,140) (82,645)
Interest paid (12,650) (14,697)
Repayment of other borrowings — (14,169)
New bank borrowings raised 112,714 32,956
Lend out short-term loan — (16,230)
Repayment to non-controlling shareholders — (84,127)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES 21,924 (178,912)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (36,364) (233,468)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 JANUARY 152,829 391,894
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES 608 (5,597)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 DECEMBER,

represented by bank balances and cash 117,073 152,829
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

GENERAL

China Mining Resources Group Limited (the “Company”) is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and principal place of business of the Company
are disclosed in the “Corporate Information” of the annual report.

The functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as the
“Group”) is Renminbi (“RMB”). The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
(“HK$”) for the convenience of the investors as its shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.

The principal activities of the Group are mining, processing and sales of molybdenum, sales of tea
products and online video broadcasting. The Group was also engaged in mining, processing and sales
of other minerals such as rutiles, silicon and iron which were discontinued during the year ended 31
December 2011 (Note 12).

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND HONG KONG ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS (“HKASs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and revised HKFRSs and HKASs issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).

Amendments to HKFRS 1 Severe Hyperinflation and Removal of Fixed Dates for First-time Adopters
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Asset
Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures — Transfers of Financial Assets

The application of the new and revised HKFRSs and HKASs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial performance and positions for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in the consolidated financial statements.

ANNUAL REPORT 2012 CHINA MINING RESOURCES GROUP LIMITED

43



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND HONG KONG ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS (“HKASSs”) (conTINUED)

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised HKFRSs and HKASs that have been
issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRSs
Amendments to HKFRS 1
Amendments to HKFRS 7
Amendments to HKFRS 9 and
HKFRS 7
HKFRS 9
HKFRS 10
HKFRS 11
HKFRS 12
Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12
Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 (2011)
HKFRS 13
Amendments to HKAS 1
HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011)
HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)
HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011)
Amendments to HKAS 32
HK(IFRIC*) — Int 20

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle?

Government Loans?

Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities?
Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures*

Financial Instruments*

Consolidated Financial Statements?

Joint Arrangements?

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities?

Consolidated Financial Statements, Joint Arrangements and
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities: Transition Guidance?

Investment Entities®

Fair Value Measurement?

Presentation of Iltems of Other Comprehensive Income'’
Employee Benefits?

Separate Financial Statements?

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures?

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities®
Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine?

*

IFRIC represents the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015.

N

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 - 2011 Cycle issued in June 2012

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 — 2011 Cycle include a number of amendments to various
HKFRSs. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.
Amendments to HKFRSs include the amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and the
amendments to HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation.

The amendments to HKAS 16 clarify that spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment
should be classified as property, plant and equipment when they meet the definition of property, plant
and equipment in HKAS 16 and as inventory otherwise. The directors of the Company (the “Directors”)
anticipate that the application of the amendments will have no material effect on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify that income tax on distributions to holders of an equity instrument
and transaction costs of an equity transaction should be accounted for in accordance with HKAS 12
Income Taxes. The Directors anticipate that the amendments to HKAS 32 will have no material effect on
the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND HONG KONG ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS (“HKASs”) (conTINUED)

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities and
amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify existing application issues relating to the offset of financial assets
and financial liabilities requirements. Specifically, the amendments clarify the meaning of “currently has a
legally enforceable right of set-off” and “simultaneous realisation and settlement”.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 require entities to disclose information about rights of offset and related
arrangements (such as collateral posting requirements) for financial instruments under an enforceable
master netting agreement or similar arrangement.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 and
interim periods within those annual periods. The disclosures should also be provided retrospectively for
all comparative periods. However, the amendments to HKAS 32 are not effective until annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2014, with retrospective application required.

The Directors anticipate that the application of these amendments to HKAS 32 and HKFRS 7 may result in
more disclosures being made with regard to offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities in the future.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the classification and measurement of financial
assets. HKFRS 9 amended in 2010 includes the requirements for the classification and measurement of
financial liabilities and for derecognition.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

— HKFRS 9 requires all recognised financial assets that are within the scope of HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement to be subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair
value. Specifically, debt investments that are held within a business model whose objective is to
collect the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost at
the end of subsequent accounting periods. All other debt investments and equity investments are
measured at their fair values at the end of subsequent reporting periods. In addition, under HKFRS
9, entities may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other comprehensive income, with only dividend
income generally recognised in profit or loss.

— With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities designated as at fair value through profit or
loss, HKFRS 9 requires that the amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is
attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented in other comprehensive income,
unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive
income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value of
financial liabilities attributable to changes in the financial liabilities’ credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value of
the financial liability designated as at fair value through profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015, with earlier application
permitted.

The Directors anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 9 in the future may have significant impact on
amounts reported in respect of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities. Regarding the Group’s
financial assets and financial liabilities, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect
until a detailed review has been completed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND HONG KONG ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS (“HKASs”) (conTINUED)

New and revised Standards on consolidation, joint arrangements, associates and
disclosures

In June 2011, a package of five standards on consolidation, joint arrangements, associates and
disclosures was issued, including HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) and
HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011).

Key requirements of these five standards are described below.

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements that deal
with consolidated financial statements and HK (SIC)-Int 12 Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities
will be withdrawn upon the effective date of HKFRS 10. Under HKFRS 10, there is only one basis for
consolidation, that is control. In addition, HKFRS 10 includes a new definition of control that contains three
elements: (a) power over an investee, (b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee, and (c) the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of the investor’'s
returns. Extensive guidance has been added in HKFRS 10 to deal with complex scenarios.

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures. HKFRS 11 deals with how a joint arrangement
of which two or more parties have joint control should be classified. HK (SIC)-Int 13 Jointly Controlled
Entities — Non-Monetary Contributions by Venturers will be withdrawn upon the effective date of HKFRS
11. Under HKFRS 11, joint arrangements are classified as joint operations or joint ventures, depending
on the rights and obligations of the parties to the arrangements. In contrast, under HKAS 31, there are
three types of joint arrangements: jointly controlled entities, jointly controlled assets and jointly controlled
operations. In addition, joint ventures under HKFRS 11 are required to be accounted for using the equity
method of accounting, whereas jointly controlled entities under HKAS 31 can be accounted for using the
equity method of accounting or proportionate consolidation.

HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable to entities that have interests in subsidiaries,
joint arrangements, associates and/or unconsolidated structured entities. In general, the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 12 are more extensive than those in the current standards.

In July 2012, the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 were issued to clarify certain
transitional guidance on the application of these five HKFRSs for the first time.

These five standards, together with the amendments relating to the transitional guidance, are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 with earlier application permitted provided that all of
these standards are applied at the same time.

The Directors anticipate that the application of these five standards would not have significant impact on
amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements.

The amendments to HKFRS 10 introduce an exception to consolidating subsidiaries for an investment
entity, except where the subsidiaries provide services that relate to the investment entity’s investment
activities. Under the amendments to HKFRS 10, an investment entity is required to measure its interests in
subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss.

To qualify as an investment entity, certain criteria have to be met. Specifically, an entity is required to:

— obtain funds from one or more investors for the purpose of providing them with professional
investment management services;

— commit to its investor(s) that its business purpose is to invest funds solely for returns from capital
appreciation, investment income, or both; and

— measure and evaluate performance of substantially all of its investments on a fair value basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND HONG KONG ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS (“HKASSs”) (conTINUED)

New and revised Standards on consolidation, joint arrangements, associates and
disclosures (CONTINUED)

Consequential amendments to HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 have been made to introduce new disclosure
requirements for investment entities.

The amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2014, with early application permitted. The Directors anticipate that the application of the
amendments will have no material effect on the Group as the Company is not an investment entity.

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for fair value measurements and disclosures about fair
value measurements. The standard defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value,
and requires disclosures about fair value measurements. The scope of HKFRS 13 is broad; it applies
to both financial instrument items and non-financial instrument items for which other HKFRSs require
or permit fair value measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements, except in specified
circumstances. In general, the disclosure requirements in HKFRS 13 are more extensive than those in
the current standards. For example, quantitative and qualitative disclosures based on the three-level fair
value hierarchy currently required for financial instruments only under HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures will be extended by HKFRS 13 to cover all assets and liabilities within its scope.

HKFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013, with earlier application
permitted.

The Directors anticipate that the application of the new standard may affect certain amounts reported in
the consolidated financial statements and result in more extensive disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income

The amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income introduce new
terminology for the statement of comprehensive income and income statement. Under the amendments
to HKAS 1, a “statement of comprehensive income” is renamed as a “statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income” and an “income statement” is renamed as a “statement of profit or loss”. The
amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option to present profit or loss and other comprehensive income in
either a single statement or in two separate but consecutive statements. However, the amendments to
HKAS 1 require items of other comprehensive income to be grouped into two categories: (a) items that
will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and (b) items that may be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss when specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of other comprehensive income is
required to be allocated on the same basis — the amendments do not change the option to present items
of other comprehensive income either before tax or net of tax.

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012. The

presentation of items of other comprehensive income will be modified accordingly when the amendments
are applied in the future accounting periods.

ANNUAL REPORT 2012 CHINA MINING RESOURCES GROUP LIMITED

47



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) AND HONG KONG ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS (“HKASSs”) (conTINUED)

HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011) Employee Benefits

The amendments to HKAS 19 change the accounting for defined benefit plans and termination benefits.
The most significant change relates to the accounting for changes in defined benefit obligations and plan
assets. The amendments require the recognition of changes in defined benefit obligations and in the
fair value of plan assets when they occur, and hence eliminate the “corridor approach” permitted under
the previous version of HKAS 19 and accelerate the recognition of past service costs. The amendments
require all actuarial gains and losses to be recognised immediately through other comprehensive income
in order for the net pension asset or liability recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
to reflect the full value of the plan deficit or surplus. Furthermore, the interest cost and expected return on
plan assets used in the previous version of HKAS 19 are replaced with a “net-interest” amount, which is
calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset.

The amendments to HKAS 19 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013
and require retrospective application. The Directors anticipate that the amendments to HKAS 19 will be
adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the annual period beginning 1 January 2013
and that the application of the amendments to HKAS 19 would not have significant impact on amounts
reported in the consolidated financial statements.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine

HK(IFRIC)-Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine applies to waste removal
costs that are incurred in surface mining activity during the production phase of the mine (“production
stripping costs”). Under the Interpretation, the costs from this waste removal activity (“stripping”) which
provide improved access to ore is recognised as a non-current asset (“stripping activity asset”) when
certain criteria are met, whereas the costs of normal ongoing operational stripping activities are accounted
for in accordance with HKAS 2 Inventories. The stripping activity asset is accounted for as an addition to,
or as an enhancement of, an existing asset and classified as tangible or intangible according to the nature
of the existing asset of which it forms part.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 20 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013. Specific transitional
provisions are provided to entities that apply HK(IFRIC)-Int 20 for the first time. However, HK (IFRIC)-Int
20 must be applied to production stripping costs incurred on or after the beginning of the earliest period
presented. The Directors anticipate that the interpretation will be adopted in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements for the annual period beginning 1 January 2013. The Directors are currently evaluating
the impact of the adoption of this new interpretation to the financial position or result of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

CHANGES ON ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
Provisions for land reclamation and cavity refill costs

The provisions for land reclamation and cavity refill costs have been determined by the Directors based
on their best estimates. The Directors estimated this liability for land reclamation and cavity refill based
upon detailed calculations of the amount and timing of future cash flows spending on the land reclamation
and cavity refill, escalated for inflation, then discounted at a discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability, such that the provision
reflects the present value of the costs expected to be required to settle the obligation. However, in so far
as the effect on the land and the environment from current mining activities becomes apparent in future
periods, the estimate of the associated costs may be subject to change in the near term. The provision
is reviewed regularly to verify that it properly reflects the present value of the obligation arising from the
current and past mining activities.

During the year, in view of the current applicable certain circumstance and the historical payment
records for the relevant costs, the Directors are of the opinion that 1) the area of land actually required
for reclamation and refill should be smaller compared with the first date of determination; 2) the material
costs and labour costs in relation to the land reclamation and cavity refill work would be decreased when
compared with the original estimation, they have therefore revised their estimation on i) discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability
from 8.34% to 5.02%; and ii) the remaining future cash flows spending on the land reclamation and cavity
refill from approximately HK$95,755,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB76,471,000) to approximately
HK$57,295,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB46,687,000) which is expected to be incurred after 2012.

As a result, gain on changes of estimation on land reclamation and cavity refill cost for the current year
amounting to approximately HK$41,121,000.

The movement of provisions for land reclamation and cavity refill costs during the year is set out in Note
33 to the consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain
financial instruments, which are measured at fair value, as explained in the accounting policies set out
below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for

goods.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTINUED)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities
(including special purpose entities) controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where
the Company has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income from the effective date of acquisition or up to the
effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.
Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately from the Group’s equity therein.
Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in
the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted
and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it (i) derecognises the assets (including any goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts at the date when control is lost, (ii) derecognises the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interests in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost
(including any components of other comprehensive income attributable to them), and (iii) recognises the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest, with
any resulting difference being recognise as a gain or loss in profit or loss attributable to the Group. When
assets of the subsidiary are carried at revalued amounts or fair values and the related cumulative gain
or loss has been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are accounted for as
if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred
directly to retained earnings as specified by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained
in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement or, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a jointly controlled entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTINUED)
Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred
in a business combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date
fair values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners
of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their
fair value, except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee
Benefits respectively;

. liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree or
share-based payment arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment at
the acquisition date (see accounting policy below); and

. assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that
standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in
the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially measured either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types
of non-controlling interests are measured at their fair value or, where applicable, on the basis specified in
another standard.

Where the consideration transferred by the Group in a business combination includes assets or liabilities
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured
at its acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the consideration transferred in a business
combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify as measurement period
adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments made against goodwill.
Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional information obtained during
the “measurement period” (which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTINUED)
Business combinations (CONTINUED)

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that do not
qualify as measurement period adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and
its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as an
asset or a liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in accordance with HKAS 39, or HKAS 37
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, as appropriate, with the corresponding gain or
loss being recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains control),
and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the
acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
are reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment would be appropriate if that interest were disposed
of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period
in which the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement period (see
above), or additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts
recognised as of that date.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses,
if any, and is presented separately in the consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the cash-generating units (or
groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently whenever there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an
acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit is less than the carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit on a pro rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in
profit and loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTiNuED)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents amounts
receivable for goods sold and services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts and

sales related taxes.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the goods are delivered and title have passed, at which
time all the following conditions are satisfied:

. the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

. the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

. the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

. it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

. the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have
been established (provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flows to the Group and the
amount of revenue can be measured reliably).

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes (other than properties under construction as described below) are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write-off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment other than
properties under construction less residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and deprecation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative purposes are carried at
cost, less any recognised accumulated impairment loss. Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such properties are
classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences when
the assets are ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal
or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTtinuED)
Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term,
except where another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic
benefits from the leased asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are
recogrised as an expense in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases, such incentives are
recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental
expense on a straight-line basis, except where another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group assesses the classification of
each element as a finance or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element have been transferred
to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases in which case the entire lease
is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the building elements in proportion to the relative
fair values of the leasehold interests in the land element and building element of the lease at the inception
of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that
is accounted for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis. When the
lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and building elements, the entire lease is
generally classified as a finance lease and accounted for as property, plant and equipment.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity, transactions in currencies other than
the functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional currency
(i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise, except for exchange differences
arising on a monetary item that forms part of the Company’s net investment in a foreign operation, in
which case, such exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity and will be reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal of the foreign operation. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or
loss for the period except for exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in
respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly in other comprehensive income, in which cases,
the exchange differences are also recognised directly in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTINUED)
Foreign currencies (CONTINUED)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations are translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong
dollars) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Income and expense items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the heading of translation reserve
(attributable to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation,
or a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, a disposal
involving loss of joint control over a jointly controlled entity that includes a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of significant influence over an associate that includes a foreign operation), all of the
exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss. In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that
does not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in profit or loss.
For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates or jointly controlled entities that do not
result in the Group losing significant influence or joint control), the proportionate share of the accumulated
exchange differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign
operation on or after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and
retranslated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange differences
arising are recognised in equity under the heading of translation reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or
sale, are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowings costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which
the Group recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is that the Group should purchase, construct or
otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognised as deferred income in the consolidated statement of
financial position and transferred to profit or loss over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the

purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no future related costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they become receivable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTINUED)
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the
projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of the reporting period.
All actuarial gains and losses of defined benefit plans are recognised immediately in other comprehensive
income in the period in which they occur. Past service cost is recognised immediately to the extent that
the benefits are already vested, and otherwise is amortised on a straight-line basis over the average
period until the amended benefits become vested.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position represents
the present value of the defined benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognised past service cost, and as
reduced by the fair value of plan assets. Any asset resulting from this calculation is limited to past service
cost, plus the present value of available refunds and reductions in future contributions to the plan.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from “(loss) profit
before tax” as reported in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income because it excludes items
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary differences arises from goodwill
or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it
is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of the reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTINUED)
Taxation (CONTINUED)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred
tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where current
tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included
in the accounting for the business combination.

Biological assets

Biological assets are plants managed by the Group which is involved in the agricultural activities of the
transformation of biological assets for sale, into agricultural produce, or into additional biological assets.
Biological assets are measured at fair value less estimated costs-to-sell at initial recognition and at each
reporting date. The fair value of biological assets is determined based on either the present value of
expected net cash flows from the biological assets discounted at a current market-determined pre-tax rate
or the market price with reference to the species, growing condition, costs incurred and expected yield of
the crops.

The agricultural produce is initially measured at fair value less estimated costs-to-sell at the time of
harvest. The fair value of agricultural produce is measured at the market prices in the local market. The
fair value less estimated costs-to-sell at the time of harvest is deemed as the cost of agricultural produce
for further processing.

The gain or loss arising on initial recognition of biological asset at fair value less estimated costs-to-sell
and from a change in fair value less estimated point-of-sale costs is recognised in profit or loss for the
financial year in which it arises.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful
lives is provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effective of any changes
in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that
are acquired separately carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets below).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinueD)
Intangible assets (CONTINUED)
Intangible assets acquired separately (CONTINUED)

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from
use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured at the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in
profit or loss in the period when the asset is derecognised.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are recognised separately from goodwill and are
initially recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried at costs less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses as follows:

(i) Mining rights

Mining rights are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
The mining rights are amortised using the units of production method based on the proven and
probable mineral reserves.

(i) Exploration rights

Exploration rights are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses. The exploration rights are amortised on a straight-line basis over the respective periods of
the rights. During the exploration and evaluation period, the amortisation charge is included as part
of cost of exploration and evaluation assets.

Alternatively, intangible assets with indefinite useful lives, comprise of brand name, are carried at cost less
any subsequent accumulated impairment losses (see accounting policy in respect of impairment losses on
tangible and intangible assets below).

Exploration and evaluation assets

Exploration and evaluation assets are recognised at cost on initial recognition. Subsequent to initial
recognition, exploration and evaluation assets are stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
Exploration and evaluation assets include the amortisation of exploration rights and the expenditure
incurred in the search for mineral resources as well as the determination of the technical feasibility and
commercial viability of extracting those resources. When the technical feasibility and commercial viability
of extracting mineral resources become demonstrable, previously recognised exploration and evaluation
assets are reclassified as either intangible assets or property, plant and equipment. These assets are
assessed for impairment before reclassification.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTiNuED)
Exploration and evaluation assets (CONTINUED)
Impairment of exploration and evaluation assets

The carrying amount of the exploration and evaluation assets is reviewed annually and adjusted for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets (“HKAS 36”) whenever one of the following
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable (the list is
not exhaustive):

. The period for which the entity has the right to explore in the specific area has expired during the
period or will expire in the near future, and is not expected to be renewed; or

. Substantive expenditure incurred on further exploration for and evaluation of mineral resources in
the specific area is neither budgeted nor planned; or

. Exploration for and evaluation of mineral resources in the specific area have not led to the discovery
of commercially viable quantities of mineral resources and the entity has decided to discontinue
such activities in the specific area; or

. Sufficient data exist to indicate that, although a development in the specific area is likely to proceed
the carrying amount of the exploration and evaluation asset is unlikely to be recovered in full from
successful development or by sale.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of inventories are calculated
using the weighted average method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)) are added to or deducted from the fair value
of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTINUED)
Financial instruments (CONTINUED)
Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into three categories, including financial assets at FVTPL,
loans and receivables and available-for-sales financial assets. The classification depends on the nature
and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of asset within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of
allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial
assets classified as FVTPL, of which interest income is included in net gains or losses.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at FVTPL represent financial assets held-for-trading.

A financial asset is classified as held-for-trading if:

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near future; or

. it is a part of a portfolio of an identified financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

. it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with changes in fair value arising from
remeasurement recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the financial assets and is included
in the impairment losses recognised in respect of held-for-trading line item in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including trade and
other receivables, short-term loan and loan interest receivables and bank balances and cash) are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any identified accumulated impairment losses
(see accounting policy on impairment loss of financial assets below).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinueD)
Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated or not classified as
financial assets at FVTPL or loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investments. The Group designated
listed equity securities as available-for-sale financial assets on initial recognition of those items.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are classified as available-for-sale and are traded in
an active market are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the carrying
amount of available-for-sale monetary financial assets relating to interest income calculated using the
effective interest method and dividends on available-for-sale equity investments are recognised in profit or
loss. Other changes in the carrying amount of available-for-sale financial assets are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of investment revaluation reserve. When
the investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss (see accounting policy on
impairment loss on financial assets below).

Dividends on available-for-sale equity investments are recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right
to receive the dividends is established.

Impairment loss of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of the
reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired where there is objective evidence that,
as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the

estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of that
investment below its cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

. breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

. the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade and other receivables, assets that are assessed
not to be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments and observable changes in national
or local economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinueD)
Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial assets (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (CONTINUED)

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed
in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial
assets with the exception of trade and other receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When a trade and other receivable is considered uncollectable, it is written-off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written-off are credited to profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be impaired, cumulative gains or losses
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the period in
which the impairment takes place.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment losses
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent
that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will not be reversed through profit or loss. Any
increase in fair value subsequent to impairment loss is recognised directly in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in investment revaluation reserve.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after

deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instrument issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds
received, net direct issued costs.

CHINA MINING RESOURCES GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinueD)
Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (CONTINUED)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade and other payables, bank borrowings, other borrowings and other
long-term payables) are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Non-redeemable convertible preference shares contains liability and equity components

Non-redeemable convertible preference shares issued by the Group that contain both the liability and
conversion option components are classified separately into respective items on initial recognition in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument. Conversion option that will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash
or another financial asset for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity instruments is classified as an
equity instrument.

Non-redeemable convertible preference shares are classified as a liability if interest payments are not
discretionary. On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability component is determined using the
prevailing market interest of similar non-convertible debts. The difference between the gross proceeds of
the issue of the non-redeemable preference shares and the fair value assigned to the liability component,
representing the conversion option for the holder to convert the shares into equity, is included in equity
(non-redeemable convertible preference shares).

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the non-redeemable convertible preference shares are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The equity component, representing the
option to convert the liability component into ordinary shares of the Company, will remain in equity until
the conversion options are exercised and will be transferred to share capital and share premium of the
Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinueD)
Financial instruments (CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (CONTINUED)
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expired, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise the asset
to the extent of its continuing involvement and recognises an associated liability. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to
recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in the profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety, the Group allocates the previous carrying
amount of the financial asset between the part it continues to recognise, and the part it no longer
recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference
between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the
consideration received for the part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss. A cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated between the part that
continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair values
of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal and constructive) as a result
of a past event, and it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into
account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those
cash flows (where the effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered
from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be
received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTINUED)
Provisions (CONTINUED)

Provisions for land reclamation and cavity refill costs are based on estimates of required expenditure on
the mines in accordance with rules and regulations in the PRC. The Group estimates its liabilities for land
reclamation and cavity refill work based upon detailed calculations of the amount and timing of the future
cash expenditure to perform the required work, escalated for inflation, then discounted at a discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability
such that the amount of provision reflects the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation. Provisions for land reclamation and cavity refill costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which the obligation is identified.

Provisions for cost of residence to employees and their families are based on estimates of required
expenditures to maintain the basic utilities supply to residential areas of employees and their families. The
Group estimates its liabilities based on future cash expenditure, escalated for inflation, then discounted at
a discounted rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the liabilities such that the amount of provision reflects the present value of the expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. Provisions for such benefits are recognised in profit and loss in the
period when the obligation is identified.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the fair value of share options granted at
the grant date is recognised as an expense in full at the grant date when the share options granted vest
immediately, with a corresponding increase in equity (share options reserve).

When the share options are exercised, the amount previously recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share options reserve will be transferred
to accumulated losses.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill (see the
accounting policy in respect of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets with finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for
impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an indication that they may be impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTinuED)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill (see the
accounting policy in respect of goodwill above) (CONTINUED)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs-to-sell and value-in-use. In assessing value in
use the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating
unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss
is recognised as income immediately in profit or loss.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described in Note 4, the Directors are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

In impairment testing, the Group determines the recoverable amount of the cash-generating units (“CGUs”)
to which goodwill has been allocated. Determining whether impairment needs to be provided requires an
estimation of the value-in-use of the CGUs. The value-in-use calculation requires the Group to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from the CGUs and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss
may arise. Details of the recoverable amount calculation for goodwill are disclosed in Note 23.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (conTinueD)

Impairment of other intangible assets, property, plant and equipment and prepaid
lease payments

The carrying amounts of other intangible assets, property, plant and equipment and prepaid lease
payments are reviewed annually and adjusted for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 whenever
certain events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. The
Group determines the recoverable amount of the assets based on the estimations of future expected cash
flows from the usage of these assets and a suitable discount rate. Where the future cash flows are less
than expected, a material impairment loss may arise. Details of the recoverable amount calculation for
other intangible assets, property, plant and equipment and prepaid lease payments are disclosed in Note
23.

Estimated impairment of trade and other receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group takes into consideration the estimation of
future cash flows. The amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset’'s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition). Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected,
a material impairment loss may arise. The movement of allowance for doubtful debts for trade and other
receivables during the year is set out in Note 26.

Provisions for post-employment benefits

The provisions for post-employment benefits have been determined using the Projected Unit Credit
Method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of the reporting period. Various actuarial
assumptions are utilised in valuation including, without limitation, the selection of discount rate and
employees’ turnover rate. The discount rate is based on management’s review of local high quality
corporate bonds. The employees’ turnover rate is based on historical trends of the Group. Where the
actual rates are differing from assumed, a material difference on provision may arise. The movement of
provisions for post-employment benefits during the year is set out in Note 33.

Valuation of biological assets
The Group’s management determines the fair values less costs-to-sell of biological assets on initial
recognition and at the end of each reporting period with reference to the market-determined prices,

cultivation area, species, growing conditions, costs incurred and expected yield of the tea and/or the
professional valuation. The details of the valuation model of the biological assets are set out in Note 22.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

REVENUE

Revenue represents turnover arising on sale of tea products, molybdenum and service income of online
video business for the year. An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year from continuing operations is
as follows:

2012 2011
HK$°000 HK$'000

Continuing operations
Sales of tea products 170,870 147,645
Online video business (“iTV”) 15 —
Sales of molybdenum 50,761 94,004
221,646 241,649

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Company’s chief executive officer, being the chief operating decision maker
(“CODM?”), for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses on
types of goods delivered or services provided. This is also the basis upon which the Group is organised
and specifically focuses on the Group’s operating divisions. No operating segments identified by the
CODM have been aggregated in arriving at the reporting segments of the Group.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating segments under HKFRS 8 are as follows:

Tea products — production and sales of tea

Molybdenum — mining, processing and sales of molybdenum

iTVvV — online video broadcasting (a new division in 2010 and commenced business
in 2012)

The operating segment of mining, processing and sales of other minerals such as rutile, silicon and iron
was discontinued in 2011. The segment information does not include any amounts for this discontinued
operation, which are described in more detail in Note 12.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

SEGMENT INFORMATION (conTiNuED)

Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results from continuing operations by reportable

and operating segments.
For the year ended 31 December 2012

Continuing operations

Tea
products Molybdenum iTv Total
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
REVENUE
Segment revenue — external sales 170,870 50,761 15 221,646
RESULT
Segment (loss) profit (13,733) 6,362 (13,836) (21,207)
Unallocated income
— Interest income on bank deposits 1,953
— Others 1,806
Total unallocated income 3,759
Unallocated expenses
— Central administrative expenses (75,972)
— Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment and prepaid lease payments (5,411)
Finance costs (23,206)
Total unallocated expenses (104,589)
Loss before tax (122,037)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (conTinuED)

Segment revenue and results (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

Continuing operations

Tea
products Molybdenum iTVv Total
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
(Restated) (Note) (Restated)
REVENUE
Segment revenue — external sales 147,645 94,004 — 241,649
RESULT
Segment profit 16,369 45,897 42,543 104,809
Unallocated income
— Interest income on bank deposits 2,568
— Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 146,780
— Gain on disposal of property, plant
and equipment and prepaid lease
payments 38,447
— Interest income from available-for-sale
investments 3,352
— Waived of debt of other payables 2,731
— Others 984
Total unallocated income 194,862
Unallocated expenses
— Central administrative expenses (115,091)
Finance costs (27,476)
Total unallocated expenses (142,567)
Profit before tax 157,104
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (conTinuED)
Segment revenue and results (CONTINUED)
Continuing operations (CONTINUED)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as the Group’s accounting policies
described Note 4. Segment (loss) profit represent the result from each segment without allocation of
central administration expenses, impairment losses recognised in respect of available-for-sale investments,
directors’ salaries, other income (mainly includes interest income on bank deposits and waived of loan
interest), interest income from available-for-sale investments, waived of debts of other payables, gain
on disposal of subsidiaries, (loss) gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment and prepaid lease
payments, loss on disposal of held-for-trading investments and finance costs. This is the measure reported
to the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.

Note: In determining the segment result of molybdenum for the year ended 31 December 2012, a “Gain on changes
of estimation on land reclamation and cavity refill cost” of approximately HK$41,121,000 (2011: HK$42,493,000)
has been included (Note 9) in the segment analysis.

Other receivables of approximately HK$57,935,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB50,000,000) in relation
to the acquisition of the iTV business had been impaired during the year ended 31 December 2010. During the
year ended 31 December 2011, the Group had received the partial repayment of approximately HK$50,449,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB41,950,000) and has recognised a reversal of impairment loss on such balance
in determining the segment result of iTV.

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by reportable and operating segment:

At 31 December 2012

Tea
products Molybdenum iTv Total
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Segment assets 450,216 318,130 25,055 793,401
Unallocated assets
— Available-for-sale investments 128,149
— Certain bank balances and cash 60,292
— Others 15,180
Total unallocated assets 203,621
Total assets 997,022
Segment liabilities 141,518 458,350 3,344 603,212
Unallocated liabilities
— Certain other payables 11,559
— Certain tax liabilities 1,918
— Non-redeemable convertible preference shares 52,702
Total unallocated liabilities 66,179

Total liabilities 669,391
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (conTinuED)

Segment assets and liabilities (CONTINUED)

At 31 December 2011

Tea
products Molybdenum iTv Total
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Segment assets 427,622 346,060 38,700 812,382
Unallocated assets
— Available-for-sale investments 222,092
— Certain bank balances and cash 85,924
— Others 15,017
Total unallocated assets 323,033
Total assets 1,135,415
Segment liabilities 106,739 476,098 3,451 586,288
Unallocated liabilities
— Certain other payables 16,004
— Certain tax liabilities 1,918
— Non-redeemable convertible preference shares 52,338
Total unallocated liabilities 70,260
Total liabilities 656,548

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and allocating resources between segments:

. all assets are allocated to operating segments other than available-for-sale investments, certain
bank balances and cash and other assets that are not attributable to segments; and

. all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than certain other payables, certain tax
liabilities, and non-redeemable convertible preference shares.
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (conTinuED)

Other segment information

For the year ended 31 December 2012

Continuing operations

Tea
products Molybdenum iTv Sub-total Unallocated Total
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000

Amounts included in the measure

of segment profit or loss or

segment assets:
Additions to non-current assets

excluding financial instruments 27,525 15,561 1,648 44,734 47 44,781
Depreciation and amortisation 6,741 10,905 745 18,391 690 19,081
Impairment losses recognised in

respect of

trade and other receivables 4,340 656 1,601 6,597 - 6,597
Reversal of impairment losses

recognised in respect of trade and

other receivables (5,671) (196) - (5,867) — (5,867)
Impairment losses recognised in

respect of other intangible assets - - 1,874 7,874 — 7,874
Impairment losses recognised in

respect of inventories 515 12,503 — 13,018 - 13,018
Impairment losses recognised in

respect of property, plant and

equipment 16,832 - - 16,832 — 16,832
Written-off of inventories 5,337 - - 5,337 — 5,337
Loss on disposal of property, plant

and equipment and prepaid lease

payments - - - — 5,411 5,411
Impairment loss recognised in respect

of available-for-sale investments - - - — 57,913 57,913
Fair value loss on available-for-sale

investments - - - — 39,819 39,819
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (conTinuED)

Other segment information (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2011

Continuing operations

Tea
products Molybdenum imv Sub-total Unallocated Total
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000

Amounts included in the measure of

segment profit or loss or segment

assets:
Additions to non-current assets

excluding financial instruments 35,506 22,732 2,632 60,870 40 60,910
Depreciation and amortisation 9,927 12,609 474 23,010 2,951 25,961
Impairment losses recognised in respect

of trade and other receivables 1,369 2,762 - 4131 — 4,131
Reversal of impairment losses recognised

in respect of trade and other

receivables (2,501) — — (2,501) (1,148) (3,649)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and

equipment and prepaid lease payments — — — — (38,447) (38,447)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of

available-for-sale investments — — - — 11,781 11,781
Fair value loss on available-for-sale

investments — — - — 136,129 136,129

Amounts regularly provided to the CODM but not included in the measure of segment profit or loss or
segment assets is immaterial.

74 CHINA MINING RESOURCES GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2012



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (conTiNUED)
Geographical information

The Group’s operations are mainly located in the PRC (country of domicile), Hong Kong, Europe and
Macau.

Information about the Group’s revenue from continuing operations from external customers is presented
based on the geographical location of customers. Information about the Group’s non-current assets

(excluding financial instruments) is presented based on the geographical location of the assets.

For the year ended 31 December 2012

The PRC
(Country of
domicile) Hong Kong Europe Macau Others Total
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Revenue from external customers 210,787 1,422 9,393 — 44 221,646
Non-current assets excluding financial
instruments 388,137 12,559 — — - 400,696

For the year ended 31 December 2011

The PRC
(Country of
domicile) Hong Kong Europe Macau Others Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
Revenue from external customers 225,066 175 14,322 2,086 — 241,649
Non-current assets excluding financial
instruments 410,030 13,208 — — — 423,238

Information about major customers

Revenues from customers of the corresponding years contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the
Group are as follows:

2012 2011

HK$’°000 HK$’000

Customer A’ 43,250 47,824
Customer B? 25,370 79,682

! Revenue from tea products
2 Revenue from molybdenum products
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8. OTHER INCOME

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$°000

Continuing operations
Interest income on bank deposits 1,953 2,568
Net income from sale of scrap materials — 51
Interest income from short-term loan 811 298
Interest income from prepayment on inventories (Note 26) 3,193 —
Government grants (Note) 5,264 4,211
Waived of loan interest — 1,149
Interest income from available-for-sale investments — 3,352
Others 1,437 248
12,658 11,877

Note: In 2012, the Group received a grant of approximately HK$4,569,000 (2011: HK$3,230,000) from the government

as a financial subsidy. The government grants are recognised directly as other income upon receipt.

9. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$°000
Continuing operations
Waived of debt of other payables — 2,731
Reversal of tax recoverable previously written-off — 8,128
Gain on changes of estimation on land reclamation and cavity
refill cost (Notes 3 and 33) 41,121 42,493
Net foreign exchange gain 370 2,707
(Loss) gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment and
prepaid lease payments (5,411) 38,447
(Loss) gain from changes in fair value less costs-to-sell for
biological assets (4,063) 184
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale investments — (191)
Loss on disposal of held-for-trading investments — (34,292)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (Note 39) — 146,780
Recognition of purchase costs as expense (Note 7) —_ 50,449
32,017 257,436
10. FINANCE COSTS
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$°000
Continuing operations
Imputed interest on long-term payables and provisions 10,556 12,477
Interest on bank borrowings wholly repayable within five years 4,222 5,458
Interest on non-redeemable convertible preference shares (Note 37) 8,294 8,232
Interest on other borrowings 134 1,309
23,206 27,476
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

11. INCOME TAX CREDIT

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$°000
Continuing operations
Current tax:
Hong Kong — 16
PRC Enterprise Income Tax — 3,298
— 3,314
Deferred tax: (Note 35)
Current year (1,804) (9,579)
Income tax credit (1,804) (6,265)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable profit for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of
the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008 onwards.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, Wuyi Star Tea Industrial Co., Ltd (“Wuyi Star”),
a subsidiary of the Company acquired in 2009, is exempted from PRC income tax for two years starting
from its first profit-making year, followed by a 50% reduction for the next three years. Wuyi Star was in its
fifth profit-making year in 2011 and hence PRC income tax was calculated at 12.5% which is 50% of the
standard tax rate, on the estimated assessable profit for 2011. For 2012, the PRC income tax of Wuyi Star
was calculated at 25%.

The income tax credit for the years can be reconciled to the (loss) profit before tax from continuing
operations per the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as follows:

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$°000
(Loss) profit before tax:

(from continuing operations) (122,037) 157,104
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 25% (30,509) 39,276
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purposes 3,082 45,956
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purposes (9,375) (137,243)
Tax effect of tax loss not recognised 21,570 59,428
Utilisation of temporary differences previously not recognised 14,752 (9,741)
Income tax on concessionary rate — (3,367)
Effect of different tax rate of subsidiaries (1,324) (574)
Income tax credit for the year (1,804) (6,265)

The domestic income tax rate represents the tax rate in the jurisdiction where the operation of the Group
is substantially based.
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12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group entered into a sale agreement to dispose of a
subsidiary, Xinganmeng Songjiang Mining Co. Ltd. (“Xinganmeng”), which was engaged in the mining,
processing and sales of other minerals such as rutile, silicon and iron operations. The disposal was
effected in order to generate cash flows for the expansion of the Group’s other businesses. The disposal
was completed on 26 April 2011, on which date control of Xinganmeng was passed to the acquirer.

The profit for the year ended 31 December 2011 from discontinued operation for Xinganmeng is analysed

as follows:
2011
HK$000
Gain on disposal of mining, processing and sales of other minerals
such as rutile, silicon and iron operations (Note 39) 11,548

The results of the mining, processing and sales of other minerals such as rutile, silicon and iron
operations, which have been included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, were as
follows:

2011
HK$'000

Revenue —
Cost of sales —

Gross profit —
Other gains and losses —
Administrative expenses —

Profit for the year —

The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of Xinganmeng at the date of disposal are disclosed in
Note 39.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (conTiNUED)

The discontinued operations contributed to the operating cash flow of the Group are stated as below:

2011
HK$000
Contributed to operating cash flow:
Net operating cash inflow from Xinganmeng —
13. (LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR
Continuing operations
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$000
(Loss) profit for the year has been arrived at after charging (crediting):
Directors’ and chief executives’ remuneration (Note 14) 9,547 19,498
Other staff's salaries, bonus and allowances 35,168 30,798
Other staff’'s contribution to retirement benefits schemes 1,088 652
Total staff costs 45,803 50,948
Impairment losses recognised in respect of trade and
other receivables 6,597 4,131
Impairment losses recognised in respect of inventories 13,018 —
Reversal of impairment losses recognised in respect of trade and other
receivables (5,867) (3,649)
Amortisation of other intangible assets 2,854 3,104
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments 1,848 5,831
Auditors’ remuneration
— Audit service 1,430 1,500
— Non-audit service 550 1,052
Costs of inventories recognised as an expense 126,623 136,190
Written-off of inventories 5,337 —
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 14,379 17,026
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

14. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ and chief executives’ emoluments

2012 2011

HK$°000 HK$’000

Fees 435 594
Other emoluments

Salaries and other benefits 8,126 7,784

Performance related incentive payments (Note f) 635 700

Share-based payments — 10,073

Retirement benefits contributions 351 347

9,547 19,498

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the eight (2011: eleven) directors and chief executives were

as follows:
2012
Performance
Salaries related Retirement
and other incentive Share-based benefits
Fees benefits payments payments  contributions Total
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
(Note f)
Chairman
You Xian Sheng - 1,500 — — 75 1,575
Executive directors
Wang Hui - 1,198 100 — 24 1,322
Yeung Kwok Kuen - 1,500 125 — 81 1,706
Chen Shou Wu - 1,500 125 — 81 1,706
Fang Yi Quan (Note a) - 360 — — 15 375
Independent non-executive directors
Chu Kang Nam 125 — — — — 125
Lin Xiang Min 125 — — — — 125
Chong Cha Hwa (Note e) 185 — — — — 185
Chief executives
Yin Guang Yuan - 910 124 — 25 1,059
Qiao Hong Bo — 625 87 — 25 737
Qu Yan Chun - 533 74 - 25 632
435 8,126 635 - 351 9,547
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

14. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(CONTINUED)
2011
Performance
Salaries related Retirement
and other incentive Share-based benefits
Fees benefits payments payments contributions Total
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
(Note f)

Chairman
You Xian Sheng — 1,500 200 2,627 85 4,412
Executive directors
Wang Hui — 1,193 — 876 22 2,091
Yeung Kwok Kuen — 1,500 250 2,627 87 4,464
Chen Shou Wu — 1,500 250 2,627 87 4,464
Fang Yi Quan (Note a) — 38 — — — 38
Non-executive director
Lam Ming Yung (Note b) 19 — — 88 — 207
Independent non-executive directors
Chan Sze Hon (Note c) 108 — — 88 — 196
Goh Choo Hwee (Note d) 108 — — 88 — 196
Chu Kang Nam 120 — — 88 — 208
Lin Xiang Min 120 — — 88 — 208
Chong Cha Hwa (Note e) 19 — — — — 19
Chief executives
Yin Guang Yuan — 903 — 876 22 1,801
Qiao Hong Bo — 621 — — 22 643
Qu Yan Chun — 529 — — 22 551

594 7,784 700 10,073 347 19,498
Notes:
(a) Fang Yi Quan was appointed on 23 November 2011.
(b) Lam Ming Yung was resigned on 29 December 2011.
(c) Chan Sze Hon was resigned on 23 November 2011.
(d) Goh Choo Hwee was resigned on 23 November 2011.
(e) Chong Cha Hwa was appointed on 23 November 2011.
(f) The performance related incentive payments are determined by reference to the financial performance of certain

subsidiaries of the Group during the year.

Mr. Chen Shou Wu is also the chief executive officer of the Company and his emoluments disclosed above
include those for service rendered by him as the chief executive officer.

Neither the chief executives nor any of the Directors waived or agreed to waive any emoluments in the two
year ended 31 December 2012 and 2011.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

14.

15.

16.

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(CONTINUED)
Employees’ emoluments
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, five (2011: five) were directors and the

chief executives of the Company whose emoluments are included in the disclosures above for both years.
Their emoluments were within the following bands:

2012 2011

No. of No. of

employees employees

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 2 —
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 3 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 — 1
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 — 3

During the two years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
the Directors or any of the chief executives as an inducement to join, or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office.

DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed during 2012, nor has any dividend been proposed since the end of the
reporting period (2011: Nil).

(LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE
From continuing and discontinued operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss) earnings per share attributable to owners of the Company
for the year from continuing and discontinued operations is based on the following data:

2012 2011
HK$°000 HK$000
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company for the
purposes of basic (loss) earnings per share (110,858) 82,109
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares:
Interest on non-redeemable convertible preference shares (Note) — 8,232
(Loss) profit for the purposes of diluted (loss) earnings per share (110,858) 90,341
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

16.

(LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE (conTinueb)

From continuing and discontinued operations (CONTINUED)

Number of shares

2012 2011
’000 000
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes of basic
(loss) earnings per share 9,138,782 9,138,782
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares:
Non-redeemable convertible preference shares (Note) — 3,776,190
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purposes of diluted (loss) earnings per share 9,138,782 12,914,972

From continuing operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss) earnings per share from continuing operations attributable to

the owners of the Company are based on the following data:

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$000
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company (110,858) 82,109
Less: profit for the year from discontinued operation — (11,548)
(Loss) profit for the purpose of basic (loss) earnings per share
from continuing operations (110,858) 70,561
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares:
Interest on non-redeemable convertible preference shares (Note) — 8,232
(Loss) profit for the purpose of diluted (loss) earnings per share
from continuing operations (110,858) 78,793

The denominators used are the same as those detailed above for basic and diluted (loss) earnings per

share.

Note: The computation of diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 December 2012 does not assume the
conversion of the Company’s outstanding share options and non-redeemable convertible preference shares

since their exercise would result in a decrease in loss per share for the year.

The computation of diluted earnings per share does not assume the exercise of the outstanding share options
as their exercise price is higher than the average market price of the shares for the year ended 31 December

2011.

From discontinued operation

Basic loss per share for the discontinued operation in 2012 is HK$Nil (basic earnings per share for 2011:
HKO0.13 cents per share) and diluted loss per share for the discontinued operations in 2012 is HK$Nil
(diluted earnings per share for 2011: HK0.09 cents per share), based on the loss for the year from the
discontinued operations of HK$Nil (profit for 2011: HK$11,548,000) and the denominators detailed above

for both basic and diluted (loss) earnings per share.
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Furniture,
fixtures
Mining Plant and and Motor  Construction
structures Buildings machinery equipment vehicles in progress Total

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000

cosT
At 1 January 2011 71,409 426,535 106,229 14,754 13,737 34,733 667,397
Exchange adjustments 2,417 11,810 3,607 427 450 167 18,878
Additions — 21,981 4,719 653 890 9,286 37,529
Disposal of subsidiaries — (28,239) (23,682) (38) — — (51,959)
Disposals — (32,055) M) (46) (2,569) — (34,677)
At 31 December 2011 and

1 January 2012 73,826 400,032 90,866 15,750 12,508 44,186 637,168
Exchange adjustments 487 2,531 600 214 82 68 3,982
Additions 841 3,042 2,926 158 2,235 35,291 44,493
Transfer 10,316 2,328 — — — (16,790) (4,146)
Written-off — (67,803) (17,085) — (109) (33,477) (118,474)
Disposals — (24,279) (98) (385) (1,314) (6,369) (32,445)
At 31 December 2012 85,470 315,851 77,209 15,737 13,402 22,909 530,578
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2011 65,803 343,566 101,960 6,414 4,492 33,477 555,712
Exchange adjustments 2,167 9,217 3,613 645 37 — 15,959
Charge for the year 253 9,202 4,158 1,630 1,783 — 17,026
Eliminated on disposal of

subsidiaries — (27,611) (23,682) (38) — — (51,331)
Eliminated on disposal — (31,897) (6) (33) (2,181) — (34,117)
At 31 December 2011 and

1 January 2012 68,223 302,477 86,043 8,618 4,411 33,477 503,249
Exchange adjustments 450 1,973 568 118 31 — 3,140
Charge for the year 1,820 7,537 1,289 1,209 2,524 — 14,379
Written-off — (67,803) (17,085) — (109) (33,477) (118,474)
Eliminated on disposal — (6,743) (56) () (915) — (7,785)
Impairment loss recognised in

profit or loss — 16,832 — — - — 16,832
At 31 December 2012 70,493 254,273 70,759 9,874 5,942 — 411,341
CARRYING VALUES
At 31 December 2012 14,977 61,578 6,450 5,863 7,460 22,909 119,237
At 31 December 2011 5,603 97,555 4,823 7,132 8,097 10,709 133,919

The Group has pledged certain buildings with carrying value of approximately HK$18,639,000 (2011:
HK$2,818,000) to secure the general banking facilities granted to the Group as details disclosed in Note
31.
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (conTinuED)

The carrying values of buildings comprise:

2012 2011

HK$’000 HK$°000

Long-term lease in Hong Kong 12,433 12,876
Medium-term lease in the PRC 49,145 84,679
61,578 97,555

The above items of property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, are depreciated on
a straight-line basis as follows:

Mining structures The units of production on the proven and probable mineral
reserves

Buildings Shorter of lease term of land or 8 — 40 years

Plant and machinery 12 — 14 years

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 — 10 years

Motor vehicles 5 — 10 years

Applications for property ownership certificates of certain buildings located in Wuyishan and Harbin with
aggregate carrying values of approximately HK$Nil (2011: HK$15,648,000) and HK$14,164,000 (2011:
HK$15,101,000) respectively as of 31 December 2012 were still in progress and these property ownership
certificates had not been issued to the Group by the relevant government authorities as at 31 December
2012.

The Directors are of the opinion that the Group has acquired the beneficial title to those buildings located
at Harbin at the end of the reporting period, and the property ownership certificates can be obtained in the
near future.

During the year, the Directors conducted a review of the Group’s buildings located in Wuyishan and
determined that a number of those assets were impaired, due to the Group fail to obtain the relevant
building ownership certificates. Accordingly, impairment loss of HK$16,832,000 has been recognised in
respected of buildings, which are used in the tea products segment.
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18. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

Analysed for reporting purposes as:

2012 2011

HK$’000 HK$000

Current asset 532 3,562
Non-current asset 31,104 29,728
31,636 33,290

The prepaid lease payments are under medium-term leases and are situated in the PRC. The prepaid
lease payments are amortised over their lease periods.

The Group has pledged a prepaid lease payment with carrying values of approximately HK$19,711,000
(2011: HK$20,117,000) to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group as details disclosed in
Note 31.

19. EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS

HK$°000
COST
At 1 January 2011 46,250
Exchange adjustments 1,565
At 31 December 2011 and 1 January 2012 47,815
Exchange adjustments 316
At 31 December 2012 48,131
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2011 46,250
Exchange adjustments 1,565
At 31 December 2011 and 1 January 2012 47,815
Exchange adjustments 316
At 31 December 2012 48,131

CARRYING VALUES
At 31 December 2012 —

At 31 December 2011 —

The Group has performed exploration in certain locations in Inner Mongolia and Heilongjiang province,
the PRC, in previous years. In 2008, the exploration and evaluation assets were fully impaired except for
those in respect of certain mines which the management believed that it was still feasible to continue the
exploration in the future. In 2009, the management considered that it is not commercially viable to further
continue the exploration given the unfavuorable economic environment. As the carrying amount of the
exploration and evaluation assets is unlikely to be recovered, the management decided to fully impair
the related evaluation and exploration assets in 2009. Accordingly, impairment loss of approximately
HK$11,580,000 was recognised in profit and loss in 2009.
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20. GOODWILL

HK$’000
COST
At 1 January 2011, 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2012 511,381
ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2011, 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2012 423,086
CARRYING VALUES
At 31 December 2012 88,295
At 31 December 2011 88,295
Details of the impairment testing on goodwill are set out in Note 23.
21. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Network Forest
Mining Exploration Brand video use
rights rights name platform right Total
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
(Note b) (Note c) (Note d) (Note e)
COST
At 1 January 2011 3,331,884 15,465 79,374 2,594 — 3,429,317
Exchange adjustments 117,149 523 23 112 — 117,807
Additions — — 186 1,554 9,641 11,381
Disposal of subsidiaries (4,553) — — — — (4,553)
At 31 December 2011 and
1 January 2012 3,444,480 15,988 79,583 4,260 9,641 3,553,952
Exchange adjustments 23,134 106 1 24 51 23,316
Additions — — 288 — — 288
Transfer — — — 4,146 — 4,146
At 31 December 2012 3,467,614 16,094 79,872 8,430 9,692 3,581,702
ACCUMULATED
AMORTISATION AND
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2011 3,226,219 15,465 44,091 — — 3,285,775
Exchange adjustments 109,054 523 — 2 — 109,579
Charge for the year 2,945 — — 128 31 3,104
Eliminated on disposal of
subsidiaries (3,538) — — — — (3,538)
At 31 December 2011 and
1 January 2012 3,334,680 15,988 44,091 130 31 3,394,920
Exchange adjustments 21,931 106 — — — 22,037
Charge for the year 2,067 — — 426 361 2,854
Impairment loss recognised
in profit or loss — — — 7,874 — 7,874
At 31 December 2012 3,358,678 16,094 44,091 8,430 392 3,427,685
CARRYING VALUES
At 31 December 2012 108,936 — 35,781 — 9,300 154,017
At 31 December 2011 109,800 — 35,492 4,130 9,610 159,032
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21. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (conTINUED)

Notes:

(a) The above intangible assets other than brand name have finite useful lives. Mining rights are amortised using
the units of production method based on the proven and probable mineral reserves and the amortisation
rate used in 2012 is 1.07% (2011: 1.60%). Exploration rights are amortised on a straight-line basis over the
contractual rights of 2 years (2011: 2 years). Network video platform is amortised on a straight-line basis over
its expected useful life of 10 years (2011: 10 years). Forest use right is amortised on a straight-line basis over
its expected useful life of 25 years (2011: 25 years).

(b) Mining rights (included in the CGU of mining business of molybdenum)

Included in mining rights is an amount of HK$108,936,000 (2011: HK$109,800,000) representing the carrying
amount of the mining rights in Harbin, acquired in 2007.

(c) Brand name (included in the CGU of tea business)

Various studies including product life cycle studies, market, competitive and environmental trends, and brand
extension opportunities have been performed by management of the Group, which supports that the brand name
has no foreseeable limit to the period over which the products with the brand name are expected to generate net
cash flows for the Group.

As a result, the brand name is considered by the management of the Group as having an indefinite useful life
because it is expected to contribute to net cash inflows indefinitely. The brand name will not be amortised until
its useful life is determined to be finite. Instead it will be tested for impairment annually whenever there is an
indication that it may be impaired. Particulars of the impairment testing are disclosed in Note 23.

(d) Network video platform (included in the CGU of iTV business)

The network video platform represents the design and application of the network video platform for providing
online video services. Certain of the platforms have been completed and put in use in 2011 and 2012 and an
impairment loss of approximately HK$7,874,000 has been recognised during the year ended 31 December 2012.
Particulars of the impairment testing are disclosed in Note 23.

During 2011, certain network video platform under construction with carrying amount approximately
HK$4,146,000, which represented the computer hardware supporting the network video platform. Therefore
it has been classified as construction in progress and grouped under property, plant and equipment as at 31
December 2011. During 2012, the construction work of such network video platform has been completed and
the balance has been reclassified to intangible asset as at 31 December 2012.

(e) Forest use right (included in the CGU of biological asset of tea plantation)

The forest use right relates to the favourable aspect of the right to use and operate the tea plantation land,
which in substance is an operating right. The fair value on acquisition was determined based on a valuation
report prepared by an independent professional valuer, Greater China Appraisal Limited using discount cash
flows method at the date of acquisition in 2011 and the estimated present value of payments due under the
agreement entered into by Wuyi. It will be tested for impairment annually whenever there is an indication that it
may be impaired. Particulars of the impairment testing are disclosed in Note 23.
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22.

23.

BIOLOGICAL ASSETS

Tea

plantation

HK$°000

At 1 January 2011 —
Additions 11,900
Exchange adjustment 180
Gain on changes in fair value less costs-to-sell 184
At 31 December 2011 and 1 January 2012 12,264
Exchange adjustment 68
Agricultural produce harvested during the year (226)
Loss on changes in fair value less costs-to-sell (4,063)
At 31 December 2012 8,043

Biological assets at the end of reporting period are stated at fair values less costs-to-sell and are analysed
as follows:

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
Non-current asset 8,043 12,264

The amount represented a tea mountain which located in Fujian Province, Wuyishan City, Wuyi Town,
Chishi Village, Du Kou Dao Ban ({24 R EILMREERANEDBI) . In accordance with the valuation
report issued by Greater China Appraisal Limited, an independent professional valuer not connected
to the Group, the fair value less costs-to-sell of tea plantation of approximately HK$8,043,000 (2011:
HK$12,264,000) is determined with reference to the present value of expected net cash flows from the
biological assets discounted at a current market-determined pre-tax rate. Hence, a loss on changes
in fair value less costs-to-sell of approximately HK$4,063,000 (2011: gain on change in fair value of
approximately HK$184,000) has been recognised in profit or loss.

The agricultural produce amounting to approximately HK$226,000 (2011: Nil) has been harvested during
the year ended 31 December 2012.

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL, OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS,
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

Impairment testing on tea business
The goodwill and brand name with indefinite useful life arose from the acquisition of King Gold Investments
Limited and its subsidiaries (the “King Gold Group”) in 2009. The tea business operated by the King Gold

Group is the CGU for the purpose of impairment testing of goodwill and brand name with indefinite useful
life.
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23.

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL, OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS,
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

(CONTINUED)
Impairment testing on tea business (CONTINUED)

During the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011, management appointed an independent professional
valuer, BMI Appraisals Limited, to assist them to determine the recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of goodwill has been determined by using value-in-use calculation. The cash flow
projections were prepared from financial budgets approved by the management of the Group covering
a five-year period and a discount rate of 12.39% (2011: 12.6%). Cash flows beyond the five-year period
were extrapolated using a 3% (2011: 3%) steady growth rate. This growth rate was based on the relevant
growth forecasts and does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the relevant industry. In
addition, the cash flow projections were prepared based on the expected gross margins determined based
on past performance and management’s expectations for the market development.

The recoverable amount of brand name has been determined on the basis of its fair value. Relief-from-
royalty method was applied in the valuation of the brand name. In applying the method, an estimate of a
reasonable royalty rate was made assuming that the brand name was licensed at a fair rate as a result of
arm’s length negotiations. Royalty rate of 3% (2011: 3%) was adopted in the valuation of brand name.

At 31 December 2012 and 2011, based on the recoverable amount determined on the basis described
above, no further impairment losses in respect of the goodwill and brand name have been recognised.

Impairment testing on mining business of molybdenum

During the year ended 31 December 2012, management has appointed an independent professional
valuer, Greater China Appraisal Limited, to perform a business valuation on the Mining Unit and no
impairment loss (2011: Nil) has been recognised according to the excess of the recoverable amount
over aggregate carrying amounts of the Mining Unit (being the CGU to which the Mining Unit has been
allocated) based on the valuation report. The value-in-use calculation is based on a discount rate of
23.45% (2011: 23.2%) and cash flow projections prepared from financial forecasts approved by the
management of the Group covering a 5-year period, taking into account of the cavity refill requirement by
the PRC government which lowered the maximum annual production of minerals and a longer forecast
period for compliance with the tightened government safety requirements. Other key assumptions for the
value-in-use calculations relate to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted sales
and gross margin, such estimation is based on the Mining Unit's past performance and management’s
expectations for the market development.

Impairment testing on iTV business

The network video platform represents the design and application of the network video platform for
providing online video services and the expected useful life is 9 years. As part of the impairment review,
the Directors compare the carrying amount with the recoverable amount of the network video platform as
at 31 December 2012 and discovered that the carrying amount was far below the recoverable amount,
therefore, approximately HK$7,874,000 (2011: Nil) impairment loss has been recognised for the year
ended 31 December 2012.
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23.

24.

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL, OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS,
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

(CONTINUED)
Impairment testing on forest use right of tea plantation

The biological assets and forest use right represent the right to use and operate of tea plantation in
Fujian Province, Wuyishan City, Wuyi Town, Chishi Village, Du Kou Dao Ban (@& R E LR FER
AREOEY) with the useful life of 24 years. The biological assets and forest use right was acquired
during the year ended 31 December 2011 for an aggregated consideration of HK$21,541,000 (equivalent
to RMB17,536,000). During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Directors appointed an independent
professional valuer, Greater China Appraisals Limited, to perform a valuation on the forest use right and
concluded that no impairment loss (2011: Nil) has been recognised according to the recoverable amount
approximate to the aggregate carrying amount of the forest use right (being the CGU to which the forest
use right has been allocated) based on the valuation report. The value-in-use calculation is based on the
discount rate of 5.3% (2011: 5.3%) and cash flow projections prepared from financial forecasts approved
by the management of the Group covering a 5-year period. Therefore, the Directors are of the opinion that
no impairment is required on the forest use right for the year ended 31 December 2012.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$000

Available-for-sale investments
Equity securities listed in overseas stock exchange 128,149 222,092

The available-for-sale investments represent investments in the listed entities as at 31 December 2012 as
details stated as follow:

Equity interest

Investment attributable to

Carrying revaluation the Group as at

Place of value as at 31 reserve  Impairment loss 31 December

Name of the investees incorporation December 2012 during 2012 during 2012 2012
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000

Selwyn Resources Ltd Canada 29,014 (27,654) (14,439) 11.14%

Fortune Minerals Ltd Canada 59,548 (17,819) (8,012) 12.63%

Majestic Gold Corporation Canada 39,587 5,654 (35,462) 6.06%
Total 128,149 (39,819) (57,913)
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24. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS (conminuED)

The available-for-sale investments represent investments in the listed entities as at 31 December 2011 as
details stated as follow:

Equity interest

Investment attributable to

Carrying revaluation the Group as at

Place of value as at 31 reserve  Impairment loss 31 December

Name of the investees incorporation December 2011 during 2011 during 2011 2011
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000

Selwyn Resources Ltd Canada 70,222 (10,857) — 11.24%

Fortune Minerals Ltd Canada 84,004 (119,618) — 13.08%

Majestic Gold Corporation Canada 67,866 (5,654) (11,781) 8.25%
Total 222,092 (136,129) (11,781)

Included in the available-for-sale investments are the following amounts denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the Group:

2012 2011
’000 000
Canadian dollars (“CAD”) 16,482 29,158

During the year ended 31 December 2012, these available-for-sale investments decline in fair value
amounting to approximately HK$97,732,000, in which amounting to approximately HK$39,819,000 is
recognised in investment revaluation reserve under other comprehensive expense and amounting to
approximately HK$57,913,000 is recognised as impairment losses for the current year.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, there are impairment losses recognised in respect of available-
of-sale investments amounting to HK$11,781,000 which is contributed from Majestic Gold Corporation
(“Majestic Gold”). The Group had subscribed the convertible notes of Majestic Gold in July 2011 and
subsequently converted into ordinary shares of Majestic Gold in October and November 2011. As the fair
value of the ordinary shares of Majestic Gold at the dates of conversion were lower than the nominal value
of the convertible notes, and the difference represented the significant and prolonged decline in fair value
of an investment below its cost. Total decline in fair value was recognised as impairment losses in 2011.

The listed available-for-sale investments represent investments in equity securities listed in Toronto Stock
Exchange (“TSE”) for both years. They are measured at fair values determined with reference to quoted
market bid prices at the end of each reporting period.

Subsequent to the investment in Fortune Minerals Ltd, Mr. Chen Shou Wu, the Director of the Company
has appointed as the director of Fortune Minerals Ltd on 6 April 2010.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the warrants which were listed in TSE were expired without

execution. The loss amounting to approximately HK$34,292,000 was recognised in profit or loss for the
year ended 31 December 2011.
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25.

26.

INVENTORIES
2012 2011
HK$’°000 HK$’000
Raw materials 58,594 56,973
Work in progress 51,955 58,224
Finished goods 62,182 67,234
172,731 182,431
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$000
Trade receivables 84,195 102,840
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (9,906) (6,646)
74,289 96,194
Other receivables 70,087 78,879
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (57,212) (59,381)
12,875 19,498
Deposits and prepayments 24,505 19,341
Prepayment on inventories (Note) 49,088 —
Total trade and other receivables 160,757 135,033

Note: The prepayment on inventories carries interest at 11.152% per annum. The balances are unsecured and
matured within one year. During the year ended 31 December 2012, interest income from prepayment on
inventories of approximately HK$3,193,000 (equivalent to RMB2,602,000) were received by Wuyi Star (Note 8).

The Group normally allows credit period of 90 days to its trade customers. The aged analysis of trade
receivables net of allowance for doubtful debts presented based on the invoice date which approximated
the respective dates on which revenue was recognised at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2012 2011

HK$’000 HK$’000

0 — 30 days 13,110 34,432
31 — 60 days 2,044 3,954
61 — 90 days 458 16,964
Over 90 days 58,677 40,844
74,289 96,194
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26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (conTinuED)

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the potential customer’s credit quality and
defines credit limits by customer. Limits and credit quality attributed to customers are reviewed once a
year. At 31 December 2012, approximately 19% (2011: 39%) of the trade receivables that are neither past
due nor impaired.

Included in the Group’s trade receivables balance as at 31 December 2012 are debtors with aggregate
carrying amount of approximately HK$58,213,000 (2011: HK$56,049,000) which are past due at the end
of the reporting period for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the amounts are still considered to be recoverable. The Group does
not hold any collateral over these balances. The average age of these receivables is 150 days (2011: 105
days).

Trade receivables which are past due based on the invoice date but not impaired:

2012 2011

HK$’000 HK$’000

31 — 90 days — 15,205
Over 90 days 58,213 40,844
58,213 56,049

At 31 December 2012, included in the Group’s trade receivables past due but not impaired is receivable
from one of the major customers of mining, processing and sales of molybdenum segment with
approximately HK$54,852,000 (2011: HK$39,627,000). This customer was a stated owned enterprise
located in the PRC and has long-term business relationship with the Group. The Group allows credit
period of 30 days to this customer. In view of the past repayment records and the high credit rating of this
customer, even though the repayment time was exceed the credit period and the balance was unsecured,
the Directors are in the opinion that no impairment on this customer is required.

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts for trade receivables:

2012 2011

HK$’000 HK$000

At beginning of the year 6,646 6,323
Exchange adjustments 36 216
Impairment losses reversed (1,116) (1,148)
Impairment losses recognised 4,340 1,255
At end of the year 9,906 6,646
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26.

27.

28.

29.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (conTinueD)

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts for other receivables:

2012 2011

HK$’000 HK$°000

At beginning of the year 59,381 61,478
Exchange adjustments 325 1,470
Disposal of subsidiaries — (3,942)
Impairment losses reversed (4,751) (2,501)
Impairment losses recognised 2,257 2,876
At end of the year 57,212 59,381

Included in the Group’s allowance for doubtful debts are individually impaired trade receivables and
other receivables with an aggregate balances of approximately HK$9,906,000 (2011: HK$6,646,000) and
HK$57,212,000 (2011: HK$59,381,000) respectively in which the Directors consider that the Group is
unlikely to recover these debts as they are long outstanding for more than one year. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

SHORT-TERM LOAN AND LOAN INTEREST RECEIVABLES

2012 2011
HK$°000 HK$’000
Loan receivables 15,954 15,868
Loan interest receivables 1,130 362
17,084 16,230

Analysed for reporting purposes as:
Current assets 17,084 16,230

The short-term loan carries interest at 5% per annum, unsecured and matured within one year. During the
year ended 31 December 2012, the Group and the debtor mutually agreed to extend the repayment period
to 30 July 2013 and all other terms of the loan remain unchanged. In January 2013, interest receivables
of approximately HK$798,000 and partial of the principal of approximately HK$1,227,000 were repaid from
the debtor.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances carry interest at prevailing market rates ranging from 0.01% to 3.1% per annum (2011:
0.02% to 3.1% per annum) at 31 December 2012.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2012 2011

HK$’000 HK$°000

Trade payables 16,166 17,759
Other payables and accruals (Note) 265,721 236,687
281,887 254,446
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29. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (conTinuED)

Note: The amount includes approximately HK$60,444,000 (2011: HK$37,216,000) mining right payables to be settled
in the next twelve months from the end of the reporting period. Details of the mining right payables are disclosed
in Note 36.

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period:

2012 2011

HK$’°000 HK$000

0 — 90 days 10,560 14,024
91 — 180 days 1,983 266
181 — 365 days 98 368
Over 1 year 3,525 3,101
16,166 17,759

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 90 days (2011: 90 days). The Group has financial risk
management policies in place to ensure that all payables are settled within the credit timetable.

30. AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the non-controlling shareholders agreed to waive partial of the
amounts due to them amounting to approximately HK$66,373,000, and the remaining balances have been
fully settled in cash during 2011.

31. BANK BORROWINGS

2012 2011

HK$°000 HK$'000

Bank borrowings — secured 67,496 32,956
Carrying amount payable:

On demand or within one year show under current liabilities 67,496 32,956

The Group has pledged a building and prepaid lease payment with carrying values of approximately
HK$18,639,000 (2011: HK$2,818,000) and HK$19,711,000 (2011: HK$20,117,000) respectively to secure
general banking facilities grant to the Group.

All the bank borrowings are variable-rate borrowings for 2012 and 2011. The ranges of effective interest
rates on the Group’s bank borrowings are as follows:

2012 2011

Variable-rate borrowings
(with reference to the lending rate of 6.31%-6.94%  5.84%-6.94%
The People’s Bank of China (“PBOC”)) per annum per annum
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32.

33.

OTHER BORROWINGS

2012 2011
Notes HK$°000 HK$000

Analysed for reporting purposes as:
Current liabilities (a) & (b) 1,754 1,221
Non-current liabilities (b) 4,738 5,238
6,492 6,459

Notes:

(a) As at 31 December 2012, included in the Group’s current liabilities of other borrowings is a loan with a principal

amount of approximately HK$1,227,000 (2011: HK$1,221,000) (2012 and 2011: equivalent to RMB1,000,000)
was provided by the Industry Development Fund (L% /EX $)of the Harbin Finance Bureau in 1998. The
amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

(b) It represented a loan with a principal amount of approximately HK$5,265,000 (2011: HK$5,238,000) (2012
and 2011: equivalent to RMB4,290,000) was received from the Harbin Finance Bureau in 2007. The amount is
unsecured, interest bearing with a fixed rate of 2.55% per annum and the repayment terms are as follows.

2012 2011

HK$’000 HK$°000

Within one year 527 —
More than one year, but not more than two years 527 524
More than two years, but not more than five years 2,632 1,571
More than five years (up to 2022) 1,579 3,143
5,265 5,238

PROVISIONS

In accordance with relevant PRC rules and regulations, the Group is obliged to accrue the costs for land
reclamation and cavity refill for the Group’s existing mines. The provision for land reclamation and cavity
refill costs has been determined by the management of the Group with reference to the valuation report
issued by Roma Appraisals Limited based on their best estimation and such costs are expected to be
incurred during the period from 2011 to 2020 (2011: 2011 to 2020). Anticipated expenditure for 2013 is
HK$5,924,000 (2011: for 2012 HK$6,428,000), and the remaining expenditure of HK$51,371,000 (2011:
for after 2012: HK$89,327,000) is expected to be incurred after 2013.

In addition to the provision of land reclamation and cavity refill costs, the Group also provides post-
employment benefits to employees. The expected cost of providing these post-employment benefits is
actuarially determined and recognised by using Projected Unit Credit Method, which involves a number
of assumptions and estimates, including inflation rate, work injury rate, discount rate and employees’
turnover ratio (Note 42). In addition, the Group also provides cost of residence benefit to its employees
and their families. After the disposal of Harbin Songjiang Copper Enterprise Co. Ltd. (“HSC”), the Group’s
liabilities on the cost of residence benefit to its employees and their families were released. The cost has
been determined by the management with reference to the actuarial valuation issued by Avista Valuation
Advisory Limited based on their best estimation. Anticipated expenditure in respect of post-employment
benefit amounting HK$22,375,000 to be incurred after 2013 (2011: for after 2012 HK$14,733,000).
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33. PROVISIONS (conTinuED)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

Provision
for land Provision
reclamation for post-
and cavity employment
refill cost benefits Total
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
At 1 January 2011 131,583 9,268 140,851
Exchange adjustment 2,240 390 2,630
Gain on change of estimation (Note b) (42,493) — (42,493)
Addition for the year 7,868 3,596 11,464
Utilisation of provision (3,443) — (3,443)
Actuarial loss — 1,479 1,479
At 31 December 2011 and
1 January 2012 95,755 14,733 110,488
Exchange adjustment 772 68 840
Gain on change of estimation (Note a) (41,121) — (41,121)
Addition for the year 2,660 3,465 6,125
Utilisation of provision (771) — (771)
Actuarial loss — 4,109 4,109
At 31 December 2012 57,295 22,375 79,670
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$000
Analysed for reporting purposes as:
Current liabilities 5,924 6,428
Non-current liabilities 73,746 104,060
79,670 110,488

Note:

(a)

(b)

During the year ended 31 December 2012, in view of the current applicable certain circumstances, and the
historical payment records for the relevant costs, the Directors have therefore revised their estimation on i)
the period of the reclamation and cavity refill costs expected to be required to settle the obligation from 12
years to 8 years; ii) discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the liability from 8.34% to 5.02%; and iii) the remaining future cash flows spending in the land
reclamation and cavity refill from HK$95,755,000 to HK$57,295,000 is expected to be incurred after 2013. As a
result, a gain on change of estimation of approximately HK$41,121,000 has been recognised in current year.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, in view of the current applicable certain circumstances, the Directors
have revised their estimation on i) the period of the reclamation and cavity refill costs expected to be required
to settle the obligation from 4 years to 12 years; and ii) discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability to 8.34%. As a result, a gain on change of
estimation of approximately HK$42,493,000 has been recognised in 2011.
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34.

35.

DEFERRED INCOME

Deferred income represents government grants received by the Group at the end of the reporting period
in respect of acquisition of property, plant and equipment and prepaid lease payments. It can only be
recognised in profit or loss when the relevant mines subsidised by the government commence operations,
which is a condition set out by the government. Such government grants are recognised as deferred
income initially and recognised in profit or loss as other income over the useful lives of the assets.

Movements of government grants during the year are as follows:

2012 2011

HK$°000 HK$'000

At beginning of the year 53,835 35,782
Exchange adjustments 496 2,495
Received during the year 7,897 16,539
Recognised in profit or loss for the year (695) (981)
At end of the year 61,533 53,835

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The followings are the deferred tax liabilities (assets) recognised and movements thereon during both
years:

Accelerated Other

tax intangible
depreciation assets Others Total
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000
At 1 January 2011 1,234 18,949 (1,436) 18,747
Exchange adjustments (867) — 2 (865)
(Credit) charge to profit or loss for the year (9,665) — 86 (9,579)
At 31 December 2011 and 1 January 2012 (9,298) 18,949 (1,348) 8,303
Exchange adjustments (365) 64 (42) (343)
Credit to profit or loss for the year — (517) (1,287) (1,804)
At 31 December 2012 (9,663) 18,496 (2,677) 6,156

ANNUAL REPORT 2012 CHINA MINING RESOURCES GROUP LIMITED



100

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

35.

36.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (conTinuED)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has deductible temporary differences of approximately
HK$760,716,000 (2011: HK$701,708,000) mainly arising from impairment of assets, including other
intangible assets and property, plant and equipment. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
relation to such deductible temporary difference as it is not probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses of approximately HK$426,580,000
(2011: HK$340,300,000). No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to such tax losses due to
the unpredictability of future profit streams. The tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared in respect of profits earned
by PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been provided for in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of temporary differences attributable to accumulated profits of
the PRC subsidiaries amounting to approximately HK$2,340,000 (2011: HK$17,987,000) as the Group is
able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

OTHER LONG-TERM PAYABLES

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
Mining right payables 114,356 113,741
Less: Amounts included under “Trade and other
payables” (Note 29) (60,444) (37,216)
53,912 76,525

Other long-term payables comprised of mining right payables, pursuant to mining rights premium
agreements in 2007 entered into between the Group and the relevant government authorities of the PRC in
respect of the mining rights of Wudaoling Molybdenum mine amounting to approximately HK$179,386,000.

The mining rights payable in respect of Wudaoling Molybdenum mine are interest free. According to
repayment terms in 2008, they shall be settled in four instalments payable on or before 22 May 2011.
In 2009, the mining right payables for Wudaoling Molybdenum has been extended to 22 May 2016 by
installments.

As the management of the Group is in the negotiation with the relevant government authorities of the PRC
in respect of the mining rights payables, the installments payable for 2011 and 2012 had not been settled
as at 31 December 2012.

As advised by the PRC legal counsel, the Group would not expose to any penalty levy by the relevant
government authority of the PRC due to the delay in settlement.

The carrying amounts of the mining rights payables in respect of Wudaoling Molybdenum mine have been
determined using a discount rate of 6.80% for current year (2011: 5.76%) according to the lending rate of
PBOC.
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37. NON-REDEEMABLE CONVERTIBLE PREFERENCE SHARES

As part of the consideration for the acquisition of Year Joy Investments Limited (“Year Joy”), the Company
allotted and issued 3,776,190,000 non-redeemable convertible preference shares (“CPS”) at HK$0.195
(market price of ordinary share) per CPS on 14 December 2010. The CPS recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position is calculated as follows:

Number of Equity Liability
CPS component component Total
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
As at 31 December 2012
Issue of CPS during the year ended
31 December 2010 3,776,190,000 684,321 52,702 737,023
As at 31 December 2011
Issue of CPS during the year ended
31 December 2010 3,776,190,000 684,321 52,338 736,659

Trinomial Lattice Model is used to value the fair value of the CPS on 14 December 2010. The inputs into
the model were as follows:

Share price HK$0.195
Exercise price HK$0.21
Risk-free rate 3.556%
Expected volatility 75.4633%
Expected dividend yield Nil

The non-redeemable convertible preference shares contain two components, liability and equity
component. The equity element is presented in equity heading “Non-redeemable convertible preference
shares”. The liability component represents the Group’s contractual obligation of interest payment to the
holders of CPS. For the fair value of the liability component of the CPS at initial recognition, effective
interest rate method is adopted in the valuation. The effective interest rate used in the valuation is 15.82%.

The principal terms of the CPS are set out below:

(a) Holders of the CPS shall not be entitled to any dividend payment or any distribution (including the
bonus issue) of the Company other than interest at the rate of 1% per annum on the issue price
of HK$0.21 per share (at the date of entering into this agreement), amounting to approximately
HK$7,930,000 per annum, payable on the last day of every six months of the date of issue of the
CPS. The CPS does not carry any voting right.

(b) The CPS is not redeemable.

(c) The holders of the CPS shall have the right to convert the CPS into ordinary shares at the
conversion ratio of one CPS into one ordinary share.
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37.

38.

NON-REDEEMABLE CONVERTIBLE PREFERENCE SHARES (conminuep)

(d)  The CPS shall rank equally among themselves. On a return of capital in liquidation or otherwise,
the assets of the Company available for distribution among the members of the Company, holders
of the CPS and the ordinary shares shall rank pari passu with each other.

(e)  The CPS is freely transferable.

(f) The CPS has no maturity date.

The movement of the liability component of the non-redeemable convertible preference shares during the
years are set out below.

2012 2011

HK$°000 HK$°000

At beginning of the year 52,338 52,036
Interest charge (Note 10) 8,294 8,232
Interest paid (7,930) (7,930)
At the end of the year 52,702 52,338

Number of non-redeemable convertible preference shares issued and fully paid is stated as follows:

Number of
CPS
At 1 January 2011, 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2012 3,776,190
SHARE CAPITAL
Number of shares Share capital
2012 2011 2012 2011
’000 000 HK$’000 HK$000
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
Authorised:
At beginning and end of the year 46,223,810 46,223,810 4,622,381 4,622,381
Issued and fully paid:
At beginning and end of the year 9,138,782 9,138,782 913,878 913,878
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39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
Year ended 31 December 2011

Disposal of Xinganmeng, Harbin Xiaoling Iron & Zinc Co. Ltd. (“Harbin Xiaoling”),
Ejinaqi Qiaolun Engeci Quartz Production Co. Ltd. (“Ejinaqi Qiaolun”) and Shanxi
Shenli Aerospace Titanium Company Limited (“Shanxi Shenli”) (Collectively known as
the “Disposal Subsidiaries?”)

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group had discontinued its mining, processing and sales of
other minerals such as rutile, silicon and iron operations by disposing of Xinganmeng. The net liabilities of
Disposal Subsidiaries at the date of disposal were as follow:

Discountinued
Disposal of subsidiaries operation
Harbin Ejinaqi Shanxi
Xiaoling Qiaolun Shenli Sub Xinganmeng
Disposal date 1.7.2011 28.7.2011 11.3.2011 Total 26.4.2011 Total
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000

Analysis of assets and liabilities over

which control was lost:

Tax liabilities (1,353) — — (1,353) — (1,353)

Trade and other receivables 12 58 — 70 955 1,025

Trade and other payables (217) — (710) (927) — (927)

Other intangible assets — — — — 1,015 1,015

Prepaid lease payments 360 — — 360 — 360

Other current asset 4,510 — — 4,510 — 4,510

Property, plant and equipment — — — — 628 628

Translation reserve (409) — (144,546) (144,955) (2,078) (147,033)

Statutory surplus reserve (541) — — (541) — (541)

Non-controlling interests — — (3,434) (3,434) — (3,434)
Net assets (liabilities) disposed of 2,362 58 (148,690) (146,270) 520 (145,750)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary:

Cash consideration received — 510 — 510 12,068 12,578

Net (assets) liabilities disposed of (2,362) (58) 148,690 146,270 (520) 145,750

(Loss) gain on disposal (2,362) 452 148,690 146,780 11,548 158,328
Net cash inflow arising on disposal:

Cash consideration — 510 — 510 12,068 12,578

ANNUAL REPORT 2012 CHINA MINING RESOURCES GROUP LIMITED 103



104

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

40.

41.

OPERATING LEASES

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$000

Minimum lease payments in respect of premises and tea plantation
under operating leases during the year 14,201 9,002

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

2012 2011

HK$’000 HK$’000

Within one year 13,267 7,948
In the second to fifth years inclusive 32,098 21,187
Over fifth years 9,096 15,095
54,461 44,230

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for certain of its office premises and tea
plantation. Leases are negotiated and rentals are fixed for terms ranging from one to ten years (2011: one
to ten years), and there is option to renew the lease contract of a tea plantation on expiry of lease term at
rental rates based on the last rental payments.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$000
Capital expenditure in respect of the acquisition of property,
plant and equipment contracted for but not provided in the
consolidated financial statements 3,755 3,924
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42. RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “Scheme”) for all qualifying Hong Kong
employees. The assets of the Scheme are held separately from those of the Group, in funds under the
control of trustees.

The PRC employees of the Group are members of state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated by
the local government. The Group is required to contribute a specified percentage of their payroll costs to
the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits.

The contributions paid/payable to the scheme by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes
are included in staff costs and disclosed in Note 13 for employees and directors respectively.

The Group also provides post-employment benefits. The benefits include compensation on work injuries
and other welfares. The expected cost of providing these post-retirement benefits is actuarially determined
and recognised by using Projected Unit Credit Method, which involves a number of assumptions and
estimates, including inflation rate, work injury rate, discount rate and employees’ turnover ratio.

The actuarial valuations of the retirement benefit plan were carried out as at 31 December 2011 by Towers
Watson, Fellow of the Institute of Actuaries and 31 December 2012 by Avista Valuation Advisory Limited.

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

Valuation at
31.12.2012 31.12.2011

Discount rate 4.25% 4.25%
Post-employment allowance and social insurance contribution annual

increase rate for injured workers 4.00% 5.00%
Heating allowance annual increase rate 5.00% 6.00%
Post-retirement medical contribution annual increase rate 5.00% 6.00%
Medical reimbursement annual increase rate for injured workers 7.00% 8.00%
Allowance annual increase rate

for beneficiaries 0.00% 4.50%
Annual turnover rate for active employees 3.00% 1.50%
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43. SHARE OPTION SCHEME
2002 Option Scheme

The Company has a share option scheme which was adopted on 26 June 2002 (the “2002 Option
Scheme”) whereby the Directors may, at their discretion, invite directors and employees of the Company or
its subsidiaries to subscribe for shares in the Company subject to terms and conditions stipulated therein.
The options granted were vested immediately at the date of grant and were exercisable within a period of
five years. Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company.

Details of the terms and movements of the share options granted pursuant to the 2002 Option Scheme are

as follows:
2012 Number of options
Exercise Balance Granted Exercised Cancelled Balance
Category Date of price per  Expiry as at during during during as at
of grantee grant share date 1.1.2012 the year the year the year  31.12.2012
Directors 30.08.2011 HK$0.161  29.08.2016 102,000,000 - - — 102,000,000
29.06.2010 HK$0.208  28.06.2015 79,000,000 - - — 79,000,000
14.10.2008 HK$0.275  13.10.2013 151,000,000 - - — 151,000,000
Employees 30.08.2011 HK$0.161  29.08.2016 204,300,000 - - — 204,300,000
29.06.2010 HK$0.208 28.06.2015 42,400,000 - - — 42,400,000
14.10.2008 HK$0.275  13.10.2013 81,600,000 - - — 81,600,000
Other (Note a) 30.08.2011 HK$0.161  29.08.2016 63,000,000 - - — 63,000,000
29.06.2010 HK$0.208  28.06.2015 6,000,000 - - - 6,000,000
14.10.2008 HK$0.275  13.10.2013 59,000,000 — — — 59,000,000
788,300,000 - - — 788,300,000
Exercisable at the end of the year 788,300,000
Weighted average
exercise price 0.211 - - - 0.211
201 Number of options
Exercise Balance Granted  Exercised Cancelled Balance
Category Date of price per  Expiry as at during during during as at
of grantee grant share date 1.1.2011 the year the year  Reallocation theyear  31.12.2011
(Note b)
Directors 30.08.2011 HK$0.161  29.08.2016 — 105,000,000 — (3,000,000) — 102,000,000
29.06.2010 HK$0.208  28.06.2015 85,000,000 — —  (6,000,000) — 79,000,000
14.10.2008 HK$0.275  13.10.2013 160,000,000 - — (9,000,000) — 151,000,000
Employees 30.08.2011 HK$0.161  29.08.2016 — 204,300,000 - - — 204,300,000
29.06.2010 HK$0.208 28.06.2015 42,400,000 — - — — 42,400,000
14.10.2008 HK$0.275  13.10.2013 81,600,000 - - - — 81,600,000
Other (Note a) 30.08.2011 HK$0.161  29.08.2016 — 60,000,000 - 3,000,000 — 63,000,000
29.06.2010 HK$0.208  28.06.2015 — — - 6,000,000 - 6,000,000
14.10.2008 HK$0.275  13.10.2013 50,000,000 - - 9,000,000 — 59,000,000
419,000,000 369,300,000 - - — 788,300,000
Exercisable at the end of the year 788,300,000
Weighted average
exercise price 0.255 0.161 - - - 0.211
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

43. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (conTINUED)

2002 Option Scheme (CONTINUED)
Notes:

(a) Other represented share options held by former director or employee or consulting firm of the Group. The share
options remain exercisable until the expiry date.

(b) There were 3 directors resigned in 2011 and their options had been transferred to “Other” in 2011 (Note 14).

During the year ended 31 December 2011, options were granted on 30 August 2011. The estimated fair
values of the options granted on 30 August 2011 were approximately HK$29,768,000.

The fair value of services received in return for share options granted is measured by reference to the fair
value of share options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the share options granted is measured
based on Binomial Option Pricing Model. The contractual life of the share option is used as an input into
this model. Expectations of early exercise are incorporated into the Binomial Option Pricing Model.

The inputs into the model as of grant date were as follows:

Grant date 14 October 2008 29 June 2010 30 August 2011
Share price HK$0.275 HK$0.200 HK$0.161
Exercise price HK$0.275 HK$0.208 HK$0.161
Expected volatility 67.12% 86.88% 73.94%
Risk-free rate 1.54% 1.613% 0.79%
Expected dividend yield — — —
Exercisable period 5 years 5 years 5 years
Fair value per option HK$0.1144 HK$0.0997 HK$0.0806

The details of the fair value per option for options granted during the year ended 31 December 2011 were
set out below:

Exercise Number of Per option Total option

multiple options value value

HK$ HK$°000

Lot 1 2.2 115,000,000 0.08759 10,073
Lot 2 2.8 254,300,000 0.07745 19,695
369,300,000 29,768
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

43.

44.

45.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (conTinuED)

2002 Option Scheme (CONTINUED)

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility of the Company’s share price over the
previous 5 years. The expected life used in the model has been adjusted, based on management’s best
estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations.

The Group recognised the total expenses of approximately HK$29,768,000 for the year ended 31
December 2011 in relation to share options granted under the 2002 Option Scheme.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes bank borrowings and other borrowings
disclosed in Notes 31 and 32 respectively and equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital and reserves.

The Directors review the capital structure on a regular basis. As part of this review, the Directors consider
the cost of capital and risks associates with each class of capital. Based on the recommendations of the

Directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure through new share issues as well as the issue
of new debt or the redemption of the existing debt.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000
Financial assets
Available-for-sale investments 128,149 222,092
Loans and receivables (including cash and cash equivalents) 221,321 284,751
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortised cost 397,183 360,353
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTiNUED)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and polices

The Group’s major financial instruments include available-for-sale investments, trade and other
receivables, short-term loan and loan interest receivables, bank balances and cash, trade and other
payables, other borrowings, bank borrowings and other long-term payables. Details of the financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Market risk

(i) Currency risk
Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency sales and purchases, and certain
trade and other receivables, bank balances, available-for-sale investments, bank borrowings
and non-redeemable convertible preference shares are denominated in foreign currencies,

which expose the Company to foreign currency risk.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets and
monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Liabilities Assets
2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
United States dollars (“USD”) — — — 2,622
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) 11,698 7,924 5,312 24,018
CAD — — 128,149 222,092
Pound Sterling (“GBP”) — 12 — —

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the USD, HK$, CAD and GBP.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTiNUED)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and polices (CONTINUED)

Market risk (CONTINUED)

()

(ii)

Currency risk (CONTINUED)

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% (2011: 5%) increase and decrease
in RMB against the relevant foreign currencies. A 5% (2011: 5%) is the sensitivity rate used
when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items
and adjusts their translation at the end of the reporting period for a 5% (2011: 5%) change in
foreign currency rates.

A negative number (i.e. in bracket)/positive number below indicate an increase/decrease in
pre-tax loss where RMB strengthen 5% (2011: 5%) against the relevant currency. For a 5%
(2011: 5%) weakening of RMB against the relevant currency, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the loss.

USD impact HK$ impact CAD impact

2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000

Increase in
pre-tax (loss) profit — (131) 319 (805) (6,407) (11,105)

USD, HK$, CAD and GBP denominated transactions are with lower transaction volumes in
the last quarter of the financial year, which results in a reduction in USD, HK$, CAD and
GBP denominated assets at year end. In view of the amount of GBP denominated liabilities
are insignificant, thus no sensitivity analysis is presented for the impact of GBP.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to fixed-rate other borrowings
(see Note 32 for details of these borrowings) and liability component of non-redeemable
convertible preference shares (see Note 37 for details of these shares). The Group is also
exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to variable-rate bank balances and bank
borrowings (see Note 31 for details of these borrowings). It is the Group’s policy to maintain
an appropriate level between its fixed-rate and variable-rate borrowings so as to balance the
fair value and cash flow interest rate risk.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity
risk management section of this note. The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of lending rate of PBOC arising from the Group’s RMB
denominated bank borrowings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTiNUED)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and polices (CONTINUED)

Market risk (CONTINUED)

(ii)

(iii)

Interest rate risk (CONTINUED)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure to interest rates
for variable-rate borrowings at the end of each reporting period. The analysis is prepared
assuming these borrowings outstanding at the end of reporting period were outstanding
for the whole year. A 50 basis point (2011: 50 basis points) increase or decrease is used
when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

For bank balances, management is of the opinion that the impact of interest rates risk is
insignificant. Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis is presented.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2011: 50 basis points) higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s pre-tax loss for the year ended 31 December
2012 would increase/decrease by approximately HK$337,000 (Pre-tax profit for 2011:
HK$165,000).

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its investments in listed equity securities,
listed and unlisted warrants. The Group’s equity price risk is mainly concentrated on equity
instruments issued by three entities listed in TSE for both year ended 2012 and 2011. In
addition, the Group will monitor the price risk and will consider hedging the risk exposure
should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure to equity price
risks at the end of the reporting period.

If the prices of the respective equity instruments had been 10% (2011: 5%) higher/lower:

. pre-tax loss for the year ended 31 December 2012 would decrease/increase by
approximately HK$12,814,000 (Pre-tax profit for 2011: HK$Nil) as a result of the
changes in fair value of held-for-trading investments; and

. investment valuation reserve would increase by approximately HK$12,814,000 (2011:

increase/decrease by approximately HK$11,104,000) for the Group as a result of the
changes in fair value of available-for-sale investments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTiNUED)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and polices (CONTINUED)
Operational risk

The Group’s exposure to operational risk is primarily attributable to heavy reliance on Dongbei
Steel Group Company Limited (“Dongbei Steel”), the major customer of the Group in the PRC, for
the molybdenum segment who accounted for approximately HK$25,370,000 (2011: Approximately
HK$79,682,000) or 11% (2011: 33%) of the Group’s total revenue for the year ended 31 December
2012. The Directors are closely monitoring the performance and financial position of Dongbei Steel.

Credit risk

At 31 December 2012, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial
loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising from
the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position. In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group
has reviewed the recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at the end of the reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made to irrecoverable amounts.

In respect of mining operations, credit evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit
over a certain amount. These receivables are due within 90 days from the date of billing. Billings
to customers are normally made immediately after the date of delivery. Overseas customers are
required to settle in cash on delivery. In this regard, the Directors consider that the Group’s credit
risk is significantly reduced. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

Dongbei Steel is the Group’s major customer in molybdenum segment and its respective trade
receivable is approximately HK54,852,000 or 74% of the total trade receivables as at 31 December
2012. Hence, the Group is exposed to credit risk arising from dependency on Dongbei Steel.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which are deposited with several banks
with high credit ratings and on trade receivable due from Dongbei Steel, the Group does not have
any other significant concentration of credit risk. Trade receivables consist of a large number of
customers, spread across diverse industries and geographical areas.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and
cash equivalents deemed adequate by the management to finance the Group’s operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual maturity for its financial liabilities
based on the agreed repayment terms. The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from
interest rate as at the end of the reporting period. The table includes both interest and principal
cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTINUED)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and polices (CONTINUED)
Liquidity risk (CONTINUED)

Liquidity tables

Repayable on
Weighted demand or Total

average within More than  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 1-2 years 25 years 5 years cash flows amount
% HKS$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HKS$'000

2012
Trade and other payables - 269,283 - - - 269,283 269,283
Other long-term payables 6.80 5,379 42,354 20,975 - 68,708 53,912
Bank borrowings 6.44 68,999 - - - 68,999 67,496
Other borrowings 2.55 2,157 648 3,035 1,660 7,500 6,492
345,818 43,002 24,010 1,660 414,490 397,183

Repayable on
Weighted demand or Total

average within More than undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years 5 years cash flows amount
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

2011
Trade and other payables — 244413 — - — 244 413 244413
Other long-term payables 7.05 8,019 60,792 29,681 — 98,492 76,525
Bank borrowings 6.94 33,581 — - — 33,581 32,956
Other borrowings 2.55 1,889 657 1,891 3422 7,859 6,459
287,902 61,449 31,572 3422 384,345 360,353

The table above does not include non-redeemable convertible preference shares which have no
maturing date. However, interest payment of HK$7,930,000 is required to pay in each of the coming
years until the non-redeemable convertible preference shares are converted.

The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments for non-derivative financial

liabilities is subject to change of changes in variable interest rate different to those estimates of
interest rates determined at the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conTINUED)
(c) Fair value
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as follows:

. the fair value of financial assets with standard terms and conditions and traded in active
liquid markets are determined with reference to quoted market bid prices.

. the fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements approximate to their corresponding fair
values.

Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent
to initial recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair
value is observable.

. Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
market for identical assets or liabilities;

. Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

. Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include
inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

At 31 December 2012

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Available-for-sale investments
Listed equity securities 128,149 — — 128,149

At 31 December 2011

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Available-for-sale investments
Listed equity securities 222,092 — — 222,092

There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 or 3 for both years.
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46.

47.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of Directors and other members of key management during the year were as follows:

2012 2011

HK$’°000 HK$’000

Short-term benefits 9,196 9,078
Retirement benefits contributions 351 347
Share-based payments — 10,073
9,547 19,498

The remuneration of Directors and key executives is determined by the remuneration committee having
regard to the financial performance of the Group, performance of individuals and market trends.

LITIGATION

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 8 November 2011, the Company has received
a writ of summons issued by the High Court of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region on 8 November
2011 (the “Writ”) pursuant to which Mr. Lin Min and Fujian Yuansheng Foods Industry Co. Ltd. (“Fujian
Yuansheng”) (named as the plaintiffs in the writ) alleged that, amongst other things, the Company and
27 other co-defendants and/or certain PRC government officials had acted in conspiracy in obtaining
ownership and control of certain assets of the plaintiffs and they were claiming for, amongst other things,
damages from all 28 defendants jointly and severally in the total amount of RMB1,589,000,000.

As the Company has not obtained any interests in Fujian Yuanshen and is seeking legal advice in

response the Writ, in the opinion of the Directors, the possible of an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefit is remote.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE GROUP

Details of the Group’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2012 and 2011 are set as follows:

Name of company

Lead Sun Investments
Limited*

New Legend International
Group Limited

Shanxi Shenli Aerospace
Titanium Company Limited*

(WEHFRXAXERAR)

Titanspeed Investments
Limited

Top Rank International
Group Limited®

Best Tone Holdings Limited

Will Win Group Limited

Harbin Songjiang Copper
(Group) Company Limited*
(REEDINE (£8)
ARRR)

Harbin Xiaoling Iron &
Zinc Co. Ltd.*
(REEm ) BEEERAR)

Harbin Songjiang
Molybdenum Ltd.*
(RAERIHEERAF)

Xinganmeng Songjiang
Mining Co. Ltd.*

(R BNTBRFEREELR)

Shangzhi Zhuhe Mining
Co.lid*
(REMKARRERAR)

Ejinaqi Qiaolun Engeci
Quartz Production Co. Ltd.*
(BEREBRERRAR
BRAR)

New Victor Investment
Limited

Place of
incorporation/
operation

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong

Hong Kong/
Hong Kong

The PRC/
The PRC

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong

Hong Kong/
Hong Kong

The PRC/
The PRC

The PRC/
The PRC

The PRC/
The PRC

The PRC

The PRC/
The PRC

The PRC

Hong Kong/
Hong Kong

Particulars
of issued and
paid up capital

1,000 shares of
US$1 each

1 share of HK$1

Registered capital
RMB184,800,000

1 share of US$1

50,000 shares of
US$1 each

1 share of US$1

1 share of HK$1

RMB240,788,100

RMB3,866,000

RMB128,782,900

RMB10,000,000

RMB50,000,000

RMB500,000

10,000 shares of
HK$1 each

Proportion of ownership interest

Group’s
effective
interest

%

57

100

51.3

100

57

100

100

75.08

75.08

75.08

75.08

75.08

75.08

100
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Held by the
Company
%

57

100

100

100

100

75.08

Held by a
subsidiary
%

90

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

Principal activities

Investment holding

Provision of
administrative
support to group
companies

Inactive

Inactive

Investment holding

Investment holding

Investment holding

Sales of copper, zinc,
molybdenum and
other nonferrous
metals

Processing of
molybdenum and
iron

Mining, processing
and sales of
molybdenum

Under construction of
smelting and
mining plant

Processing of
molybdenum

Not yet commenced
business

Inactive



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE GROUP (conminueD)

Proportion of ownership interest

Place of Particulars Group’s
incorporation/ of issued and effective  Held by the Held by a
Name of company operation paid up capital interest Company  subsidiary Principal activities
% % %
King Gold Investments Limited  British Virgin Islands/ 100 shares of 80 80 — Investment holding
Hong Kong US$1 each
Desire Star Hong Kong Hong Kong/ 100 shares of 80 — 100 Investment holding
Limited Hong Kong HK$1 each
Wuyi Star Tea Industrial Co., ~ The PRC/ RMB109,000,000 80 — 100 Production and sales
Lid*(RREXEERLA) The PRC of tea products
China Dahongpao Tea Hong Kong/ 10,000 shares of 80 — 100 Inactive
Industrial Company Limited Hong Kong HK$1 each
Fortune Sharp Limited British Virgin Islands/ 1 share of US$1 80 — 100 Trading of tea
Hong Kong products
Famous Class Limited British Virgin Islands/ 50,000 shares of 100 100 — Investment holding
Hong Kong US$1 each
Year Joy Investments Limited  British Virgin Islands/ 100 shares of 70 — 70 Investment holding
Hong Kong US$1 each
Top Delight Investments Hong Kong/ 1 share of HK$1 70 — 100 Investment holding
Limited Hong Kong
Beijing Nian Yue Technology ~ The PRC/ RMB1,000,000 70 — 100  Provision of technical
Co., Ltd. (L RF R The PRC support and
BRAF) consulting services
and yet start
business
China iTV Network Co., Ltd.* ~ The PRC/ RMB50,000,000 Note — — Provision of online
(MMEREERREBRAR)  The PRC video services
Power Crown Limited Hong Kong/ 10,000 shares of 80 — 100 Inactive
Hong Kong HK$1 each

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities during the year and at the end of the year.

Note: The Group holds 70% of controlling interest in this subsidiary through special arrangements.

# A limited liability company established in the PRC

* Disposed of during 2011
* Strike off of during 2012
A Top Rank International Group Limited (“Top Rank”) is directly held by Lead Sun Investments Limited

(“Lead Sun”). During the year ended 31 December 2012, Lead Sun has been strike off. Therefore,

Top Rank ceases to be the subsidiary of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

49. FINANCIAL SUMMARY OF THE COMPANY

(a) Assets and Liabilities

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$°000
Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries 329,000 329,390
Amount due from a subsidiary — 696,956
Property, plant and equipment 110 135
329,110 1,026,481
Current assets
Amounts due from subsidiaries 299 185,696
Other receivables 2,468 1,428
Bank balances and cash 57,661 77,619
60,428 264,743
Current liabilities
Other payables 11,452 10,107
Amount due to a subsidiary 47,501 47,381
58,953 57,488
Net current assets 1,475 207,255
Total assets less current liabilities 330,585 1,233,736
Non-current liability
Non-redeemable convertible preference shares 52,702 52,338
277,883 1,181,398
Capital and reserves
Share capital 913,878 913,878
Reserves (635,995) 267,520
277,883 1,181,398
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

49. FINANCIAL SUMMARY OF THE COMPANY (conTinUED)

(b) Reserves

Non-
redeemable
convertible Share
Share preference options  Translation Accumulated
premium shares reserve reserve Losses Total
HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000
(Note 37) (Note 43)
At 1 January 2011 3,192,267 684,321 46,071 35,509 (3,661,404) 296,764
Loss and total
comprehensive
expense for the year — — — — (59,012) (59,012)

Recognition of equity-
settled share-based
payments — — 29,768 — — 29,768

At 31 December 2011

and 1 January 2012 3,192,267 684,321 75,839 35,509 (3,720,416) 267,520
Loss and total

comprehensive

expense for the year — — — — (903,515) (903,515)
At 31 December 2012 3,192,267 684,321 75,839 35,509 (4,623,931) (635,995)
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

For the year ended 31 December

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
RESULTS
Revenue
Continuing operations 221,646 241,649 327,775 218,626 493,767
Discontinued operations — — 14,152 31,477 25,037
221,646 241,649 341,927 250,103 518,804
(Loss) profit for the year
attributable to:
Owners of the Company (110,858) 82,109 (1,749,676) (321,876) (3,243,986)
Non-controlling interests (9,375) 92,808 (2,863) (79,479) (1,571,489)
(120,233) 174,917 (1,752,539) (401,355) (4,815,475)

As at 31 December

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
(Restated) (Restated)

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Total assets 997,022 1,135,415 1,416,057 1,969,445 2,360,299
Total liabilities (669,391) (656,548) (916,790) (1,020,113) (1,287,844)
327,631 478,867 499,267 949,332 1,072,455

Represented by:

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company 139,713 284,037 420,660 864,504 947,140
Non-controlling interests 187,918 194,830 78,607 84,828 125,315
327,631 478,867 499,267 949,332 1,072,455
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